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February 4, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with America's Youth
Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network. Inc. (VC# 166581), Manchester, NH, to continue to
provide competency and credit earning tutoring to the John H. Sununu Youth Services Center, by
exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $250,000 from $650,000 to
$900,000 and by extending the completion date from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2026, effective July
1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 22, 2022, item
#33A, and amended on June 26, 2024, item #16.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026. with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421510-66430000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPTOF, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, SUNUNU YOUTH SERVICES CENTER, SYSC

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500589
Grant for Pub

Asst & Rel
42151705 $150,000 $0 $150,000

2024 074-500589
Grant for Pub

Asst & Rel
42151705 $250,000 $0 $250,000

2025 074-500589
Grant for Pub

Asst & Rel
42151705 $250,000 $0 $250,000

2026 074-500589
Grant for Pub

Asst & Rel
42151705 $0 $250,000. $250,000

Total $650,000 $250,000 $900,000



Her Excellency. Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and (he Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor currently runs
community-based programs in several areas across New Hampshire serving at risk youth in their
educational, career, and other individually identified programming. The Contractor's experience and
expertise with this population directly benefits the youth sen/ed at the John H. Sununu Yputh Services
Center (SYSC) who receive educational services while in residence. Additionally, the Contractor,
through this contract, is able to continue providing services to youth upon release from SYSC. to re
integrate them into their home communities and continue to support their ongoing individualized,
needs, which is critical for the youth's successful transition to the community. This exterision will also

allow the Department tirhe to assess current needs as well as future opportunities for shared services
at the Sununu Youth Services Center (SYSC) given the pending relocation of the facility to the grounds
of the Hampstead Hospital and Regional Treatment Facility anticipated within the next two (2) years.
The Contractor will be willing and able to continue to provide these critical services' through this
transition.

The purpose of this request is to exercise an available contract renewal option to continue
comprehensive, engaging, and individualized secondary educational service, post-secondary
planning, career exploration, and employment training services provided by the Contractor to youth at
SYSC. The Contractor provides a continuum of care, which includes aiding with skills development
and goals, and supporting the provision of Free and Appropriate Public Education. The Contractor
supports youth with obtaining a high school diploma or High School Equivalency Diploma (HiSet).

Approximately 18 individuals will be served concurrently through June 30,2026.

The Contractor will continue to work collaboratively .with the Department to provide youth a
combination of direct instruction and tutoring for developing competency and credit earning. The
Contractor collaborates with high schools, erriployers, colleges and social service agencies to provide
a holistic approach to serving youth based on individual needs, as well as support wrap-around
community-based supports to youth retuming home through the in-school youth programs offered in
New Hampshire school systems.

The Department will continue to monitor services to ensure:

•  90% of youth receiving educational services make measurable progress towards
their education goals as determined by their school district

•  100% of IEP/504 plans for youth are supported by the Contractor and ensure
adherence to IEP8/504 plans, including attendance at IEP/504 plan Meetings and
the development of IEP/504 plan revisions.

As reference in Exhibit A, Revisions to. Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to five (5) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1)
year of the remaining four (4) years available.
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Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council
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Should the Governor and Council hot authorize this request, youth at SYSC will not receive
the support and/or educational needs outlined in their IEP/504 plans, nor the support needed to
transition successfully back into their community and school systems.

Area served; Sununu Youth Senrices Center.

Ily mitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Servicee'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Competency and Credit Eaming Tutoring contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and America's
Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 22, 2022 (Iterri #33A), as amended on June 26, 2024 (Item #16), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as arnended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7., Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026 , '

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:

$900,000

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget Sheet through Exhibit C-4, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2.

4. Add Exhibit C-4, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto aind Incorporated by
reference herein.

America's Youth Teenage Unemploynient
Reduction Network, Inc. A-S-1.3 . . • Contractor Initials
SS-2023.DCyF-12-COMPE-01-A02 , /4 /7n7«;

Page 1 of 3 Date_fl2__
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/4/2025

Date

-OoeuSigntd by;

N'im''e^^^T§%a Hardy

Title; Director, DLTSS

3/4/2025

Date

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc.

■OocuSioned by:

Executive Director

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment
Reduction Network, Inc.
SS-2023-DCYF-12-COMPE-01-AD2
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3
Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuStgnM by:

3/5/2025

Diti . Na^e^^^'^'l^uarino
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment v/as approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment

Reduction Netvrork, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS.2023-DCyF-12-COMPE-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-4, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name:

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc.

Budget Request for:
Competency and Credit Earning Tutoring
{SS-2023-DCYF-12-COMPE-01-A02)

Budget Period SFY2026 - July 1, 2025 - June 30. 2026
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)0.00%

Line Item
Program Cost -

Funded,by DHHS

Budget Narrative

Explain specific line item costs

included and their direct

relationship to meeting the

objectives of this solicitation.

1. Salary & Wages $203,980

2. Fringe Benefits $41,020"

3. Consultants $0

4.. Equipment - Indirect cost rate cannot

be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. $0

■

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $1,000

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies'- Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $2,000

6. Travel $0 '

7. Software . $0-

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0

Student Activities $2,000

Other (please specify) $0 I

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $250,000

Total Indirect Costs $0

TOTAL $250,000
-DS

n
3/4/2025
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary ofSlate of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that AMERICA'S YOUn-f lEENAGE

UNEMPLOYMENT REDUC1 ION NEI WORK, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in^

New Hainpshirc on April 07, 2004. 1 further ccrti ly tfiat all fee.s and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofllcc have

been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTice is concerned.,

Business ID: 471109

Certificate Nmnbcr: 0007078062

Mf.

■9

A

IN 'lESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxed-

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 4th day of March A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan '

Secretary of State



XiERTIFiCAtE OF AUfHORltV

j. AngefBurgadb, hereby ^ .
(Name of the eleded ,Officer of the Cdrpofation/LLC; cannot be corilraci signatory)

r. I am a duly electfd Clefk/SecretalV/pffice of America's Youth teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

•2/the fbjIowlrig is a tree copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Boa'rd of Directors/sharehdiders, duly called arid.
Held on Noverhter 18, '2013, at which a quorum of the Directors/sharehdiders were present arid vdtirig.

(Dale) ' - ^ ^ . . ..

vptED: That Al|ispn Joseptif-Executiye Director (may list rrioreithari one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)
.  ' * y ' '

.'is duly-authorized on behalf of Arnenca's Youth T^^ UnemploymeritlReductipH.Ne^^ Inc.
(Name of Gdrporation/LLC)' • ^

to enteriritb ̂ ritracts of agreements with the State of New Hariipshlre arid ariy of Its "agencies p> depaftrii'erifs arid ,
further'is authorized to execute any arid all documehts, agreemehte and other Instruments, arid ahy .amendn^nls;.
feylsipris, orirn'pdificatidns thefetp. vyhich rhay.in his/her judgment be desirable of necessafy vtp effect the pufjwse of
thisvpte. ' ' •

3.i hereby certify that said vote has not been arnerided or repealed arid remains Iri'fuH fofw ari'd effect^as of th^ •
date pf^the contract/contract amendmerit tp which this certificate Is attached. This "authority was valid thirty (30)
days, prior, to arid remains valid for thirty (30) days frorh the date of this Certificate of Authority. I.further certify
.that it Is uhderstpdd that the State. pf New Hampshire will rely dri this certificate as eviderice .that the *pefs6n(s) •
listed above curr;eritly occupy the p6sitlon(s) Indicated'and tfiat they-haye fuii authprily.tp bind the. (^Ypdratiori. to
the extent that there are any Ilfriits on the.authprity of ariy,listed:individual to bind the corborafidn in cbn'tfacts with
the State pif'New Hampshire.' all such lirnitatiops are expressly stated Herein.

6aled:
•- r ' ' ' sigriatufepIElL

Name: Angel Burgad<
title; President. Board of DIrectorSi

icer

'Rev.03/24/20 -
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acord' certificate OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DO/YVYY)

12/9/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rightis to the certificate holder in lieu of such endor$ement(s).

PRODUCER ' , .
Marsh & McLennan Agency LLC - New England
100 Front St, Ste 800
Worcester MA 01608

COMTACT
NAME:

Fiti- 888-850-9400 866-795-8016

ADDRESS; MMA.NewEnaland.Ceft@marshmc.eom

INSURERfSl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A; Philadelphia Insurance Comoany 23850

INSURED AMERIYOUTHl

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment
Reduction Network, Inc.
1019 Crescent Street

Brockton MA 02301

INSURER B: Hanover Service Center 22292

INSURER c:

INSURER D:

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1134450455 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IRSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

IN3D
SUBR

VWB POUCY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MMfOD/YYYYI
POLICY EXP

(MM/OO/YYYYl LIMfTS

A X COMMERCIAL GE NERALLIABILFTY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR
PHPK2577089 8/24/2024 8/24/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MA£
DAMAGE TO RgNTgB
PRFMIRFS fFa txaairrenml $100,000

MED EXP (Arty one person) ' $50,000

PERSONAL « AOV INJURY $1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

POLICY 1 I^CT IAIlOC
OTHER;'

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK2577089 8/24/2024

)

6/24/2025
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $ 1.000,000

ANY AUTO

HEDULED
TOS
)N-OWNED

rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

sc
Al

BODILY INJURY (Per aeciderrt) $

X X NC

At
PROPERTY DAMAGE

$

$

A X UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS LIAS

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB872900 ' 8/24/2024 8/24/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

AGGREGATE $1,000,000

OED X RETENTION S i n nnn $

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANYPftOPRIETORrt>ARTNER®(ECUTIVE 1 1
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUOEO?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yes, describe urtder
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

W2NH241761 8/23/2024 8/23/2025 •
y  PER 6Th-
^  STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddKlonat Remarki Sdwdute. may b* attachtd If more cpaea Is requirad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of NH

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEOR^ESE^^TIVE^^^^^^^^

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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A/fcrroRN
INCORPORATeO

for Opportunity and Success

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.

Mission Statement:

Our mission is to unleash the full potential in people, regardless of circumstance,

helping them chart a course to a bright future. We serve youth, adults and families

throughout New England at transitional points in their lives by offering

comprehensive career services and academic support. We remove critical barriers

impacting their success, all with a holistic, on-going approach that supports each

individual participant.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT

REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
d/b/a MY TURN, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

(WITH ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT

REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021
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Bruce D. Norling, CPA, P.O.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of America's Youth Teenage
Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. (a nonprofit Organization), which comprise the
statements of financial position as of June 30. 2022 and 2021 and the related statements of
activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Organization as of June 30, 2022, the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. ■

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit-of the Financial Statements section of our report.. We are
required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance vyith accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit

1
410 Boston Post Road, Suite 24 • Sudbury, MA 01776 •(978-443-9114)
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conducted in accordance with, generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
defecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks, of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures" include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit'findings" and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles] and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was,derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures^of federal awards is fairly stated, "in all material respects, in relation
to the financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
August 31, 2023 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Sruce^D. NorUn^, CPA, PC.

August 31, 2023
Sudbury, Massachusetts
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

2022 2021

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

403,139

115,606

•  695

519,440

260,967

151,210

1,261

413,438

FIXED ASSETS

Software

Computer Equipment

Office Equipment

Furniture and Fixtures

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

TOTAL NET FIXED ASSETS

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

1,658

7,882

23,040

2,091

(34,671)

12,425

$  531.865

1,658

7,882

23,040

2,091

(34,671)

12,425

$  425.863

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued Expenses

Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses

RPR Loan Payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

With Donor Restrictions

Without Donor Restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

.35,438

57,296

243,077

335,811

193,165

2,889

196,054

531,865

14,481

43,111

243,077

300,669

122,333

2,861

125,194

$  425,863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK. INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTVrTIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

WITHOUT DONOR

RESTRICTIONS

PUBUC SUPPORT AND REVENUES

Contributions

Grants

Federal and State funding

Donated Sen/ices and Space

Interest Income

Net Assets Released from Restrictions

TOTAL

EXPENSES

Administration

Fundraising

Program Services

TOTAL

S 138.603

341.335

1.588.508

93.720

115

122.333

2,284,614

271.570

13,704

1.999.312

WITH DONOR

RESTRICTIONS

193.165

(122.333)

70.832

2.284,586

TOTAL

138,603

534,500

1,588,508

93.720

115

2,355.446

271,570

13,704

1,999,312

WITHOUT DONOR

RESTRICTIONS

$  27,010

13,000

1,601,715

46,680

15

65,185
1,753,605

236.392

222

1,673,079

WITH DONOR

RESTRICTIONS

$  144,000

(65,185)

78,815

2,284,586 1,909,693

TOTAL

171,010

13,000

1,601,715

46,680

15

1,832,420

236,392

222

1.673.079

1.909.693

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS, End of Year

28

2.861

2,889

70,832

122,333

193,165

70,860

125,194

196,054

(156,088)

158,878

2,790

78,815

43,518

$  122.333

(77.273)

202.396

125.123

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE, 30 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $ 70,860 $  (77,202)

Adjustments to Reconcile Changes in Net Assets to

Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:

Changes in Operating Assets:
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable

(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses
Changes in Operating Liabilities:

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses

35,604

566

35,142

30,747

(390)

8,025

Net Cash From Operating Activities 142,172 (38,820)

CASH FLOWS FROM (used in) FINANCINGINVESTING ACTIVITIES
Security Deposits (5,551)

(5,551)

CASH FLOWS FROM (used in) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advances on Line of Credit

Repayments on Line of Credit

RPR Loan payable

150,000

(150,000)

150,000

(150,000)

243,077

Net Cash From (used in) Financing Activities - 243,077

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 142,172 198,706

CASH, Beginning of year 260,967 ■ 62,261

CASH. End of year $ 403,139 $  260.967

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW:^

Interest Raid S 149 $  3.133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022

Administration Fundraising Total

Salaries and benefits $ 82.263 $ - $ 1,468,514 $ 1,550,777
Occupancy 168,253 - 139,963 308,216
Supplies and support 2,836 13,704 390,835 407,375
Consultants and professional fees 18,2.18 - - 18,218
Totals $ 271,570 $ 13.704 $ 1,999,312 $ 2,284,586

✓

2021

Administration Fundraising Program Services Total

Salaries and benefits $ 86,973 $ - $ '  1,258,986 $ 1,345,959
Occupancy 134,433 - 76,023 210,456
Supplies and support 1,986 222 338,070. 340,278
Consultants and professional fees 13,000 - - 13,000

Totals $ 236,392 $ 222 $ 1.673,079 $ 1,909,693

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK. INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of ̂ America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc. have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The significant accounting "policies
followed are described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements to the

reader.

Nature of Activities

America's Youth Teenage Unemploymerit Reduction Network, Inc. (the Organization) is
committed to assisting youth develop goals, skills and the confidence needed to transition
successfully into post-secondary education or training and the world of work by providing
school-to-career services. The Organization operates in partnership with a wide range of
colleges and universities, as well as with government agencies at the local, state and
national levels.

All of the Organization's services are provided to eastern Massachusetts and southern
New Hampshire residents. The following program divisions are listed in order of relative
importance based upon total program expenditures:

In-School and Out-of-School Youth - The In-School division provides youth, ages 14 to
21 who are currently in high school, the opportunity to develop strategies and tools and
gain practical life skills to overcome obstacles and barriers to complete high school. The
Out-of-School Youth division assists youth, ages 16 to 24 who are high school dropouts
and/or unemployed, in developing strategies and tools and gaining life skills and work
experience needed to overcome obstacles and barriers to employment through working
with employers who can provide young adults with work-based learning experiences and
permanent jobs as well as mentoring, supervision and on-going training to succeed in the
work place. In addition, the Organization provides higher education readiness
opportunities and school training and education preparation for first generation college
bound students for success in college.

Manufacturing Training Programs - The Manufacturing Training Programs are similar to
the Out-of-School Youth Programs, but focus exclusively on preparing highly motivated
young individuals for exciting careers in manufacturing through partnerships with several
local industry partners.

Adult Programs - Our Adult Division provides academic instruction in preparation for HiSet
& GED testing. Additionally, services are provided to adults who are pursuing post-
secondary credentials and career ladder employment.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and contracts and program service fees are recognized as revenue as services
are provided. Conditional promises to give and grants wjth stipulations that limit the use
of the assets are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the
barrier(s) in the agreement are overcome. A contribution is conditional if an agreement
includes a barrier that must be overcome and either a right of return of assets transferred

8
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

or a right of release of a promisor's obligation to transfer assets exists. The presence of
both a barrier and a right of return or right of release indicates that a recipient is not
entitled to the contribution until it has overcome the barrier(s) in the agreement. All other
revenue is recorded when earned.

The Organization records grants, gifts , and contributions as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the assets. When a
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net
assets as net assets released from restrictions. Restricted contributions received where

related restrictions are met in the same reporting period are classified as unrestricted
revenue.

The Organization earns revenue as follows:

Contracts - Contract revenue is earned and recognized by the Organization when
services are provided and billed under various agreements funded primarily by
governmental agencies. All contracts are cost-reimburseriient contracts, all with ceiling
amounts. Under cost-reimbursement contracts, revenue recognition takes place as costs
related to the services provided are incurred. Billings on the contracts are subject to final
approval by the governmental agency.

Grants - The Organization records grant revenue over the period of the award and the
provisions of the grant determine the timing of revenue recognition. Amounts that have
been received but not earned are included in deferred revenue. .

Program Service Fees - Program service fee revenue is earned and recognized by the
Organization when services are provided and billed. ^

PPP Loan - The Organization accounts for forgivable Loans (Paycheck Protection
Program) as debt in accordance with ASC470. The forgiveness of debt, in whole or in
part, is legally released from the liability by the SBA. When.debt is forgiven, it's recorded
as Gain on Extinguishment of Debt, and presented on the Statement of Activities.

Accounts Receivable

The Organization carries its accounts receivable at an amount equal to uncollected but
eamed revenue less an allowance for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the
Organization evaluates its accounts receivable and establishes an allowance for doubtful
accounts, based on an assessment of collectability. As of June 30, 2022, management
has determined no allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary.
Basis of Presentation

The financial statements report net assets and changes in net assets in two classes that
are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions placed on use by its donors as
follows:
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations. The
only limits on the use of these net assets are the broad limits resulting from the nature of
the Organization, the environment in which it operates, the purposes specified in its
corporate documents and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting
from contractual agreements with creditors and others that are entered into in the course
of its operations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are restricted by a donor for use for
a particular purpose or in a particular future period. Some donor-imposed restrictions are
temporary in nature, and the restriction will expire when the resources are used in
accordance with the donor's instructions or when the stipulated time has passed. Other
donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature; the organization must continue to use
the resources in accordance with the donor's restrictions.

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources in the manner
specified by the donor or by the passage of time, the expiration of . the restriction is
reported in the financial statements by reclassifying the net assets from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions. Net assets restricted for

acquisition of building or equipment (or less comrhonly, the contribution of those assets
directly) are reported as net assets with donor restrictions until the specified asset is
placed in service by the Organization, unless the donor provides more specific directions
about the period of its use.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use
of the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions.
Revenues are reported as net assets without donor restrictions if the donor-imposed
restrictions are met in the same reporting period. Expenses are reported as decreases
in net assets without donor restrictions. The statement of activities reports all changes in
net assets, including changes in net assets without donor restrictions from operating
activities.

Nonprofit Status and Income Taxes

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. qualifies as an
organization formed for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and, therefore, is not subject to income tax. The Organization is not a
private foundation under Section 509(a)(1). Certain unrelated business income as
defined in the Internal Revenue Code, is subject to federal income tax. For the,year
ended June 30, 2022, there was no liability for tax on unrelated business income.

The^ Organization is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are
currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. The Organization's federal and state
income tax returns are generally open to examination for the last three years.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Fundraisinq

Fundraising relates to the activities of raising general and specific contributions to the
Organization and promoting special events.
Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis in the statement of activities and in the statement of functional

expenses. Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting
services. Expenses related to more than one function are allocated to programs and
supporting services. Administration expenses include those expenses that are not
directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support and
direction of the Organization. Occupancy costs are allocated to functions based upon
full-time equivalents. Payroll and associated costs are allocated based on time studies.

Advertising Costs

The Organization expenses advertising costs when they are incurred. Advertising
expense was immaterial for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the Organization's financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assetsrand
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its
cash deposit balances in banks located in Massachusetts. The Organization's balances
occasionally exceed those limits. Management feels there is no risk as the chance of loss
is remote.

Fixed Assets and Amortization/Depreciation

Fixed assets are recorded at cost or, if donated, fair value on the date of receipt.
Amortization and depreciation are provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of
depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives. Improvements,
including planned major maintenance activities are capitalized, while expenditures for
routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The Organization
computes amortization and depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life.

Donated Items and Services

The Organization received donated program space (occupancy) amounting to $93,720
and $46,680 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Amounts are
recorded at estimated reasonable rates of costs which would have been involved had the

facilities been rented.

Fair Value Measurements
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

The Organization determines the fair market values of its financial assets and liabilities,
as Nwell as non-financial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value
on a recurring basis, based on the fair value hierarchy established in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. This policy establishes a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The Organization
values its qualifying assets and liabilities using Level 1 inputs. Level 1 inputs reflect
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the measurement date.
A qualifying asset or liability's level within the framework is. based upon the lowest level
of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The Organization is required to apply the provisions of U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles to fair value measurements for nonfinancial assets and liabilities
that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a non-recurring
basis. The Organization has no nonfinancial assets or liabilities required to be accounted
for on a non-recurring basis as of June 30, 2022.

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, FASB issued ASU- 2016^02, Leases (Topic 842). The ASU's core
principle is to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by
recognizing leased assets and liabilities on the statements of financial position and
disclosing key information. ASU 2018-02 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted.

Management is currently evaluating the effect that these new standards will have on the
Organization's financial statements and related disclosures.

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 are;

Financial assets: 2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $ 403,139 $ 260,967.
Accounts Receivable 115.606 151'210
Total financial assets 518,745 412,177

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions 193:165 122.262

Financial assets available to meet general
Expenditures within one year: $ 325.580 $ 289.915

The Organization has $253,292 of financial assets available within one year of the
balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general expenditures. None of the financial
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable
for general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date. The Organization
keeps its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations come due. The Organization has a goal of maintaining a cash balance of 30
days on hand to meet its normal operating expenses, which are, on average, $190,382.

3. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

Prior to year-end, the Organization applied for and received a $243,077 loan under the
Paycheck Protection Program created as part of the relief efforts related to COVID-19
and administered by the Small Business Administration. MY TURN has recorded a note
payable and will record forgiveness upon being, legally released from the loan obligation.
Principal and interest payments (at 1%) will be required through the maturity date of
February 1, 2026. The Organization has not yet received forgiveness approval.

4. LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has available a demand line of credit with Rockland Trust Company (a
Massachusetts bank) of $100,000 to be drawn upon as needed, with interest at the bank's
base lending rate plus 3.00%, or 5.75% as of June 30, 2022. The line is secured by the
Organization's general business assets. The'outstanding balance on the line of credit as
of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $0.

5. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Organization leases office space at BO Erdman Way in Leominster Massachusetts
as well as 340 Granite St. in Manchester New Hampshire. The following is a. schedule of
future minimum lease payments under the operating leases.

FY2023 $• 118,284
FY2024 120,204

FY2025 120,204
FY2026 113.067

471.759

All of the Organization's other locations are leased as tenant at will.
Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $152,878 and $118,644
respectively.

6. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Organization has a defined contribution pension plan that qualifies as a tax-sheltered
account under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code for the benefit of eligible
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

employees. Salaried employees that are at.least 21 years old are eligible to participate
in this plan upon hire. Under the plan, benefit eligible employees can invest pre-tax
dollars. The employees are not taxed on contributions or earnirigs until they receive
distributions from the account. The Organization made no contributions under this plan
for 2022 and 2021.

7. REVENUE

All of the Organization's revenue is derived from its activities in Massachusetts and New
Hampshire. During the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. The Organization derived
approximately ̂ 10% and 9% of its total revenue from foundations and individual donors,
70% and 88% from governmental agencies and 20% and 3% from other sources,
respectively.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

There were no related party transactions during fiscal year 2022 or 2021.

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives most of its funding from government agencies under cost
reimbursement programs. The ultimate determination of amounts received under these
programs generally is based upon allowable costs reported to and audited by the
government. Until such audits, if any, have been completed, and final settlement
reached, there exists a contingency to refund any amount received in excess of allowable
costs. Management is of the opinion that no material liability will result from such audits.

The Organization's operations are concentrated in the social service provider field. As
such, the Organization operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of
the Organization are subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal,
state and local regulatory agencies including, but not limited to the United States
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration passed through the New
Hampshire Department of Education.

Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of
Congress, act of the state and local legislature or an administrative change mandated by
the government departments listed above. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative
burden to comply with a change. Additionally, contractual funding may decrease or be
withdrawn with little notice.

10. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of resources available to meet future

obligations, but only in compliance with the restrictions specified by donors. Donor
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

restrictions limit the use of the resources to the youth programs for which they are
designated. <

11. MANAGEMENT PLANS TO FINANCE OPERATIONS

Management of the Organization is aware of the net asset balance and has plans to
finance future operations. These plans include additional fundraising efforts and closely
monitoring expenses. Due to the untimely collection of receiva^^tes, the Organization has
a demand line of credit with Rockland Zrust to be"drawru^p_Ph'if needed. Management
believes it has sought adequate resources for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 and
June 30, 2021 to support its operating budgets if needed.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization did not have any recognized or non-recognized subsequent events after
June 30, 2022, the date of the statement of financial position. Subsequent events have
been evaluated through August 31. 2023, the date the financial statements were available
to be issued.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

FEDERAL GRANTOR / PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR / PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH ENTITY IDENTIFYING

NUMBER

TOTAL

FEDERAL AWARDS

EXPENDED

U.S DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

Passed through the Bureau of Economic Affairs

WIAO Cluster

WlOA Youth Activities $■ 1,141,271

Passed through North Central Mass. Workforce investment Board
WlOA Youth Activities N/A 177,650

TOTALUSDOUWIOAYouth Activities, WlOA Cluster A 17.259 1,318,921

U.S DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION
Passed through State of New HamF>shire Department of Education

Adult Education B 84.002 06-56-56510-4095-102-500731 108,020

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT OFFICE OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
Passed through City of Rochester, NH

Community Development Block Grants / Entitlement Grants B 14.218 N/A
CDBG Cares Act B 14.218.119 N/A

24.000
317

U.S DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE B 16.609 33.000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 1,484,258

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the federal grant activity of America's "youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network. Inc..
d/b/a My Turn, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of My Turn, it is not intended to and does not present financial position, changes in net assets, or cash ftowrs of My Turn.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain tyF>es of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. My Turn has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

B. My Turn, Inc. idenfified the larger Federal Programs (Type A programs) as those programs that exceed $750,000. All other programs are labeled as Type B programs.
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Bruce D. Norling, CPA, P.C

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General pf the United States,
the financial statements of America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc. (a nonprofit Organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated August 31, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given .these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do. not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is intended solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control and'compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bruce^D. MoriCr\0i CPA, PC

August 31, 2023
Sudbury, Massachusetts '
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Bruce D. Norling, CPA, P.O.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.'s (the
Organization) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization's major federal programs for the year ended June 30. 2022. The Organization's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material, respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion oh Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our- audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal-program. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination of the Organization's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance
with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicab[e to the Organization's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above "occurred, whether due to fraud or error.

19 . ^
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and express an opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance \with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Organization's compliance with
the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. ' ̂

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Govemmenf >Aud/f/;7Sf S/andards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

■ circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over, compliance.
Accordingly, no such, opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and . timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does-not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance'section above and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist
that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. •

Bruce^V. hJorlCn^, CPA, PC

August 31, 2023
Sudbury, Massachusetts
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT

REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial
statements of America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc. (the Organization).

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the. financial statements
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government

Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the
Organization were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance
for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required
by the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs
for the Organization expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal
programs.

6. Audit findings.that are required to be reported in accordance with'Uniform
Guidance are reported in this schedule.

7. The program tested as major program was:

U.S. Department of Labor: WlOA Youth Activities (CFDA #17.259) ̂
8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and 8 programs was $750,000.

Type A programs are those that exceed $750,000.

9. The Organization was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT -NONE

C. FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS - NONE
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT

REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Prior Audit Findings: None

23



mnmu
INCORrORATCO'

for Opportunity.and Success

Americans Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, liic.
Governing Board Membership

All Positions are Voluntarily Held

Angel Burgado, President
4 years of service Vice President

Community Partnership Manager,
SantandcrBank

Robin Remillard, Vice President

2 years of service

Realtor, East Key Realty

Butch Locke, Treasurer

2 years of service

Strategic Operations Director,
BAE Systems

Lydia Zak, Director

1 year of sen'ice

School Psychologist Consultant,
South Eastern Regional Educational Service
Center

Justin Chauvin, Director

3 years of service

Regional Commercial Sales Representative,
Builder Installed Products

Jennifer Conroy, Director
2 years of service

Senior Director, Americas Sales Strategy &
Operations, Sitccorc

Andrew Davenport, Director
1 year of serv ice

Program Manager,
BAE Systems

/

Jon Mason, Director

6 years of sen'ice

Corporate Continuing Education
Coordinator,

Nashua Community College

Chris Picou, Director ^
1 year of service

Chief Technology Officer,
Measured Progress

/

Patrick Queenan, Director

5 years of service

Trial Attorney Criminal Division,
United States Department of Justice
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Allison Joseph

Accomplished non-profit Executive Director passionate about expanding economic opportunity
and eliminating gun violence. Relentlessly supportive of participants and staff. Creative
problem solver, skilled at creating unique solutions to complex problems.

Employment;

Executive Director December 2013 - Present

MY TURN, Incorporated
Increased revenue from $860k to $3.8M including $1.7M in Federal Workforce innovation
and Opportunity Act funds. Overseeing 44 staffand operations across 20 sites throughout
New Hampshire and Massachusetts,providing services to 1,000 participants. AH programs
meeting or exceed federal and.state performance measures.

■  Provides strategic leadership, including business planning, budget forecasting, and
board relations.

Supervises and mentors direct service managers.
Ensures successful program outcomes.
Analyzes^ data to drive program improvements.
Researches best practices in areas related to youth education and employment.
Develops key partnerships to advance the mission of the organization.
Responsible for all aspects of programming aiid operations including Human
Resources, Finance, Information Technology, Program Evaluation, and Program
Management. '

■ Manages and conducts organizational ftmdraising including grant writing, event
planning, gift requests.

> Featured in National Youth Employment Coalition (NYEC)'s Report: Cross-System
Collaborative Approaches to Promote Workforce Development for Youth with Justice
Involvement; 2023 Ccross system collaborative approaches to promote workforce
development fsecureserver.netll

> Featured by National Institute of Justice as a Evidence-Based Collaboration to Reduce
Gun Violence - 2023 (Police Use Science and Community Partnerships to Reduce Gun
Violence I National Institute of Justice (oiD.govI")

> Featured in NH Bar Association News for our work on New Hampshire's Young Adult
Court pilot program - 2023 rBN-9-20-23.Ddf (nhba.sJ.amazonaws.comll pg. 5

> Designed and implemented New Hampshire's first and only Violence Interruption
Program - Project Connect - In collaboration with Manchester Police Department; 2021

> Received the New Hampshire Advantage Award-NH Business and Industry
Association; 2019

> Featured by Office of Adolescent Health as a TAG (Think, Act, Grow) in Action -
Successful Strategies for Improving Adolescent Health; 2017 (TAG In Action:
Successful Strategies I Youth.govl ^

> Received the Leadership Development Program of the Year - Stay Work Play Rising
Star Awards; 2016 ,
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Deputy Director July 2013-December 2013
MY TURN, Incorporated

. Retained all responsibilities of the Director of Programs, NH Region. Also peiformed the
following tasks:

■  Coordinated with CEO to implement all administrative strategies to ensure quality
programming.

■  Evaluated all financial statements on monthly basis and analyze all trends.
■  Assisted in the development of all program grants and financial contracts. i
■  Participated in contract negotiations.
■  Assisted CEO in the oversight of employee benefits administration including: Health,

Dental, and 40,1 (k)

. Director of Programs,'NH Region May 2011-July 2013
MY TURN, Incorporated
Maintained supen>isory authority over all programming and staffing within 4 Programs in the
New Hampshire region. Coordinated community , relations within the region, including job
development, public relations, and cultivation ofpartners. Also performed the following
tasks: '

■  Secured the grant funding for all 4 Federal Workforce Investment Act programs.
■  Ensured tlie achievement of benchmarks, data collection/reporting and contractual

obligations for all NH programs.
■- Ensured that all programs' budgets were adhered to and that changes to those budgets,

i  including requests for movement of funds between specific line items, were properly
negotiated with relevant funders.

■  Provided effective supervision of staff within the region including: conducting regular
staff ineetings, completion Of performance reviews, creation and revision of
professional development plans with staff, orientation and training of staff, providing
oversight, guidance, and mentorship to staff, coordinating staff schedules and PTO
requests. - '

■  Analyzed data to identify trends, best practices, and programmatic challenges; used
data to strategically develop and implement program improvements.

■  Developed and implemented mentorship program including recruitment and training of
new mentors in cooperation with the Greater Nashua Hiunan Resource Association.

Career Specialist, Manchester Central High School July 2007 - May 2011
MY TURN, Incorporated
Responsiblefor the recivitment and ca.se management of 35-1- low-income, at-risk youth, and
for the implementation ofa Federal Workforce Investment Actflmded academic and
employment training program including thefollowing tasks:

■  Provided employment services and Work-Based Learning experiences.
■  Facilitated summer youth employment opportunities by devdoping jobs in the

community and oversaw youth employees.
■  Created engaging curriculum to deliver educational/tutoring skills training.
■  Developed citizenship and leadership development opportunities in the community.

^  ■ Directed student led Community Service-Learning Projects.
■  Provided additional support services and twelve months of follow-up services to each
"  participant. . . •
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Education:

Excellence in Governance Certificate November2016

Ntf Centerfor Nonprofits

Certified Entrepreneurship Teacher December 2008
Network for Teaching Entrepreneurship, Bentley University, Waltham, MA

Bachelor of Arts in Sociology ' December 2006
Saint Anselm College, Goffslown, NH

Leadership & Awards: ^ / '
CompStat360 Gun Violence Problem Solving Team (Manchester)
2021-Present

Work cpllaboratively. with stakeholders to de\>elop solutions to violence, especially youth/young
adult gun violence, in the city of Manchester, NH

Taistee, Blue Knights Foundation
2017-Present

Evaluate grant proposalsforfinding. Foundation exclusively supports students and activities at
Manchester High School West.

WMUR - Heroes Among Us
2022 . , -

Nominated by a MY TURN Alumni as a local hero /Heroes Among Us: Allison Joseph I IfiS "All
of the magic is within them when thev come to us and we iiist clear the.wav for them to be able'

to achieve their goals." Allison Joseoh. executive... I Bv WMUR-TV I Facebodk)

NHHB4 Work Group on the Benefits Cliff
2020-2022

Nominated by Governor Chris Summit to assist in the development of policies to mitigate the
impact of the benefits cliff and increase opportunities for economic prosperity in NH.

Endowment for Health - Race & Equity: Economic Developrnent/Criminal Justice Work Groups
2018-2023

Worked to create systems, policies and programs that support racial equity and fairness so that
all residents of NH may prosper.

Union Leader NH 40 Under Forty Award
2016

Recognizedfor work as a leader in the non-profit sector.

NH Shared Youth Vision Teams:

Manchester Area; Member 2007 - 2013; Co Chair 2010 - 2013
Concord Area; Member 2012 - 2013; Co Chair 2012-2013
Worked to elevate the voices ofyouth and young adults in the Greater Manchester and
Concord areas.

Outstanding Teacher; NH WZID Teacher Appreciation Week
2011

Nominated by a MY TURN participant as an out.standing teacher.



JOANN SMITH

OBJECTIVE

To obtain a position that would allow me to utilize my vast human service knowledge, while
helping others in my community become the best versions of themselves

EXPERIENCE

2014-PRESENT

WIC/CSFS RECEPTIONIST, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES

•  Answer phones for all Hillsborough and Rockingham County clients
•  Schedule appointments for all Hillsborough and Rockingham County clients
• Assist clients with transferring services in and out of the state

•  issue vouchers, clinic intake, and provide voucher education
•  Assist coordinat ion of services for breastfeeding clients
•  Schedule interpreters
• Assist clients with finding resources to meet their individual needs
•  Facilitate client flow to ensure clients are seen in a timely manner

2011-2014
BREASTFEEDING PEER COUNSELOR AND CLINIC TECH, SOUTHERN NH

SERVICES

•  Counsel pregnant and postpartum women on the benefits of breastfeeding

•  Issue and track electric breast pumps

•  Promote the benefits of breastfeeding within the agency and community

•  Scheduling client appointment

•  Issue vouchers, clinic intake, and provide voucher education
2009-2011

TEFAP COORDINATOR, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES

•  Supervise TEFAP distribution

•  Schedule TEFAP distribution

• Maintain inventory reports from the recipient agencies

•  Transfer Clients in and out of the program
2007 - 2009

PART 1IME OFFICE SUPPOR P, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES

• Answer phones

•  Schedule appointments

•  Complete other general office tasks as needed

2007-2008

SUMiMER FOOD, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES



•  Prepare Meals

•  Supervise Kitchen Staff

• Deliver food to staff

2006-2010

SCHOOL ACE SITE DIRECTOR, BOYS & GTRLS CLUB OF MANCHESTER

• Directed after-school program for elementary school students

•  Coordinated and implemented daily activities for children

• Maintained program files

•  Scheduled Staff

•  Facilitated all parent contact

EDUCATION

Manchester Community College

Business and Early Childhood Education Studies
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Allison Joseph Executive Director $0 $120,000

JoAnn Smith Lead Instructor SYSC $67,000 $67,000

$ $

$ $

$ $

$ $
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Lofl A. Weaver

ComraiDicncr

Marte.&Nbenan
Inrerlm Dlrcclor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmSlONFOR CHILDREN, YOVTH& FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301-3857
<03-271-4451 1-800-852^345 Ext 4451

Fox: <03-271-4729 TDD Access: 1.800-735-2964 www.dbhj.nh.gov

June 3, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

l(o

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the'Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children. Youth and
Families, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with America's Youth
Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. (VC#166581). Manchester. NH to conlinue to
provide competency and credit earning tutoring to Sununu Youth Services Center (SYSC), by
exercising a contract renewal-option by Increasing the price limitation .by $250,000 from $400,000
to $650,000 and extending the completion date from June 30, 2024 to June 30, 2025, effective
July 1. 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 22 2022 Item
#33A.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025. with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, If needed and justified.

05-95-42-421510-65430000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUIWAN SVCS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / .

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500589

Grant for

Pub Asst &

Re!

42151705
$150,000 $0 $150,000

2024 074-500589
Grant for

Pub Asst &

Rel
^42151705

$250,000 $0 $250,000

2025 074-500589
Grant for

Pub Asst &
Rel

42151705
$0 $250,000 $250,000

Total $400,000 $250,000 $650,000



Docusign Envelope ID: 5CAA5EE2-091D-4F1F-94CB-5CEAD9072230

DocuSign Envelope ID; 5eOCAF2D-D120-4E72-AF2O^C3E94CA5R

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
. and the Honorable Courts
Page 2 of2

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
orlginalty approved as sole source to. be identified as sole source. The Contractor has expertise
in providing educational services to support youth similar to the populalioh at SYSC and provides
a oontinuurri of care that is critical for these youth, which includes continuing services upon
release from SYSC. re-Integrating youth Into their home communities.»

The purpose of this request Is for the Contractor to continue to provide comprehensive, •
engaging and IndividuaUzed secondary educational service, post-secondary planning, career-
exploration. and employment training services to youth at SYSC In order to aid in development of
skills, goals and support the provision of Free and Appropriate Publlc.Education. The Contractor
supports with the completion of academics for obtaining a high school diploma or HiSet;

Approximately 18 individuals will be simultaneously served throughout State Fiscal Year
2025. '

The Contractor will continue to work collaboratively with the Department staff to provide
youth a combination of direct Instruction and tutoring for developing competency and credit
earning. The Contractor collaborates with high schools, employers, colleges and social service
agencies to provide a holistic approach to serving youth based on individual needs, as well; as
support wrap-around community-based supports to youth returning home from SYSC through the
iri-school youth programs through the New Hampshire school systems,

^ The Department will monitor services by ensuring:

o  90% of youth receiving educational services vyill make measurable progress towards
their education goals as determined by their school district.

o  100% of IEP/604 plans for youth will be supported by the contractor and adhere to
IEPs/504s, including attendance to lEPysCM Meetings and the development of
IEP/504 revisions.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreernent Provisions of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to five (5) additional years,
contingent upon.satisfactory delivery of services; available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising its option to renew sen/ices for one
(1) of the five (5) years available. '•

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, youth at SYSC will hot receive
the support and/or educational needs outlined in their lEP arid the support needed to transition
successfully back into their community and school systems.

Area served: Sununu Youth Services Center

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver f?
CommlBsloner

Tht Dfparimcntpf fiealth and Human Scrvicca'Mission is lajoin caniniumties ond.familics
,  in providing opporUmUiss for citinns to achiax Iteallh and ludcpendcncn.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human'Services

Amendment#!

This Amendment to the Competency and Credit Earning Tutoring contract is by and' between the State of
New Hampshire^ Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and America's
Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 22, '2022 (Item #33A), the Contractor agreed to perfbrin certain services based upon; the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of:certain sums specified; and'
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form, P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upori written-
agreement of the partiesrand approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and,

NOWTHEREFORE, in.consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and.cbnditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties,hereto agree to amend as follows:

.  -1. Form P-37 General Provisions.'Block, 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

.June 30,2025 '■ '
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$650,000.. '

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Section 1.6., to read:
.1.6. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department and sending school districts to ensure

■alHndividualized Educational Plan (lEP) and 504 plans for youth are supported and adheredto. ^ ^ ■
4. Modify :Exhibit B, 'Scope of Services Section 1.7., to read:

1.7. The Contractor ̂ must work collaboratively with the Department staff to provide a minimum of
four (4) to five (5) educators, during normal schoof hours, five days a week, to provide and
support educational/vocational services to all youth at SYSC,

5. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section "1.22.1.1.. to read:
1.22.1.1. 90% of youth receivlng educational seivices wili-make measurableprogress towards their

education goals as determined by their school district.
6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall- be on a cost.reirnbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreemerit,. and shall be In accordance with the approved line items, as
specified iri Exhibits C-l-, Budget Sheet through 0-3, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1.

7. Add Exhiblt'C-3, Budget Sheet ^Amendment #1. which, is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. .

America's Youlh Teenage UnemploymenlR^urtion - 'Nehvork, Inc. ^ ^ A-S-1.3 ^ Contractor Iriitials.
SS-2023rDCYF-12-COMPE-01-A01 ' Page1of3 Data • •
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. ^

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6/4/2024

Date

-DocuSign«d by:

Title: DCYF interim Director

America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc.

6/4/2024

Date

v—DoeuSlgoBd by:

MroctcBat'Bwg. I i

Name:' losepn

Title: Executive Director

Ainerica's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS.2023-DCYF-12-COMPE-01-A01 Page 2 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

■ OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/6/2024

Date

-OocuSlgntd by:

A/

Title: Attorney

-(.uarirtO

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of"
the State of New Hampshire-at the Meeting on: . (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

America's Youth Teenage Unemploymenl Reduction
Netwofl<, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS.2023-DCYF-12.COMPE.01-A01 / Page 3 of 3
v. 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Americajs^Yputti-Teehag^^
Budget Request for; C6mpetenpi^d!erea ■

Budget Period Sif;2q25:(aul^i1. -2024 ^ i-' - ■,
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0;oq%- ;

1. Salary & Wages
2. Fringe Benefits
3. Consultants

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 20D.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR"200.

:  te ,• ■■■ ■ ■■
[  ' • .iSftV-----.- W.:., •.mi: ;!; . .,

5.(a), Supplies - Educational
5.(b) Supplies - Lab
5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy
5.(d) Supplies - Medical
5.(e) Supplies Office
6. Travel hi .. ;- ■
7. Software •- ^ . j!?.,.'. . •' : .iiv-vU;,:
8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications.
8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) M:5J ■ ■■' -" .■ ■ ?:r «lKSI::MEilirW '

Other (please specify) 3®:": - . :.5-i . ■ :::
Other (please specify) ,ir. . .v.,:; vgAli-lIiSliifi'SPa:
Other (please specify)
Other (please specify) .5-^-5 :-,- .A.'.. -1^ :-AJ $P:'

9. Subrecipieht Contracts :i&i .,''S-:8.- v
Total Direct Costs ■34;y V -jgg•;,■ ■iyi,:V:/v. - < i'j-ASSsSSAAliSigJSZSO.OOO- '

0
Total Indirect Costs KiSr-g- ■ ?2rA:-"3!irg»' A$0',

TOTAL >' sSfiS-W- ■ ->■, - SBSisSjs^-fSi$25j35pOOi ■

SS-2023-DCYF-12-COMPE-01rA01

Contractor Initials:

Date:
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W:

l<«ri A;Sli1bInctlc.

ComQiUdonrr

Joirph'E; Ribiau; Jr.
Director

STATE OF NEW ITAMPSH IRE

DEPARTMENT OE HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Diyisiojyron aiiwRmYOUTJf&i-amuj/ts

119 RLliASAKr ̂ EET^ CONCORD, Nil 0«01.38S7
(!03-2'7J-4451 ^8.0H3^3345 Ext 4451

Fax:60W7M7l9 TDD Acccjj; 1-800-735^2964 ivww.dlihj.nb.gov

November 9, 2022

His B<celi6ncy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Cohcgrd, Now Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize theDepartrnent of Health and Human Sjen/ioes; Division for Children; Youth and
Families, .to award a Solo Sourco contract'with Amenca's Yo'ut.H Teenage Unemptoymehl
Reduction Netw.ork, Inc. {Ve#^166581)„ Manchester, NH, In the amount of $400,000 for
competency arid credit earning tutoring to Sununu Youth Services .Center (SYSC), 'wi^.the option
tp reney/forup to five (5) additional years, effective .upon Govemor and Coundl approva! or jbn
December 1, 2022, whichever is later, through Jtine'Sp, 2024.100% General Funds.

Funds are' available, jn the following account for State Fiscaj Year 20'23 and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operajihg budget, With the authority^tp adjust budget line.items within the price
ilmltation and encurribrances between state.fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justined.

05-95-42^21510^iM30000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF HHS: SUNUNU YOUTH SERVICES .CENTER;SY8C. HB2 91:327* -

State
Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class TUto Job Number'  Total Amount'

■  2023
074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst

"■&Reil
TBb ■ $.150,000

2024
074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst:

'•■:&R,eli
TBD $250,000'

Total. $400,000'

explanation

This.fequesl is Soio. Sourco because, the Contractor is the only known yendpr able to
provideihe nece^ary services'wilhin the reguired tirfiefrarhe due to exigent educatiohal'staffing
rteeds at SYSC, the vendor is also uniquely,qualified given their leYel of' expertise- in providing
services Iq support ypUh simllar-to the population v/ho t^lFbe served at SYSC. The Contractor
also provides a' contlnijum of care that is- critical for youth served Ijy the Department, which
includes conUnuing services upon release 'from SYSC, re-lntegraling youth in their:, home
communities.

the Utporinf.iit of HettUh umt Unman Spvltx^'Mission is lo)o\n edmiJiuntikB anUfamlHTs
in provMng opporltinilieji fpr eUieeiu to {Khicee lKolih ar.d'indcpendcAco.-
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HisExceliencyi Qpyemor Ctirtstoptier T. Slinunu
and tho. HohorabieCounci)

R«ge.2,of2

A ^ purpose of this, request IS to-provide .comprehensive,'.engaging end irtdividualizedseppndary educational 'service, ppst-s.e.condary planning; career-exploration,' and employment
tramlng services to youth at SYSC in order to aid in development of skills, goals and-self-
cortfidence. , d .

Approximately 16 individuals will be 'served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and.2024.
„  coliaboratively with the Department staff to .provide youth a ■

combination of dired mstaiclion and tutoring fondevelopirig competency-arid credit earning such
as academlc nstruc«on. -Hi SET or college preparatiori and .career explofation. Addilionally the
Contractor vijill collabo.rate with local partners such as' high schools employers .and .colleaes to
provide a hplislic approach to serving youth baised:on individual needs, as wei as support wrap-
arpynd commuhi^-based supports to youth returning'home from 'SYSC through the in-school
youth programs through the New Hampshire-(NH). school systems^

The Department wlli monitor seh/ice^ using-the foUqvdng performance measures:
0  Q'youth receiving educallpnai'servicesvvill earn educational credit.

°  for youth will, be-supporled by the" contractor and adliere to.IEPsf504s. including attendance to IEP/504 Meetings arid the development of
IEP/604 revisions. ^

nu referenced, in Exhibit,A. .Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions Section 1.2. -agreement, the parties have the option to' extend -the agreement for up five
(5) additional years,- contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available "fundino
agreement of the parties and Governor and eouncil approval.

'  Governor and Couhdl not authorize this request,.youth atSYSC will not receiveeduwtiqnal instruction and credits, career and workforce deveiopmerit support. Additionally
.youth *not receive the.sapport.ahd or educalional needs outlined in .theirindividual Educafldri
Pian (iEp resulting In youth lacking in the educational and career supported needed to transitbn
successfully back into their community and school systems.

Area .served:-Statewide

Respectfully submitted;

■  for:
Lorl A.,Shlblhett,e
Commlsdoner

V -',' T •
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.  iSubjcd: Compotisncy and C.fptfit.Eornlng Tutoring (SS^024-DCYP-t2-COMPE-01)
FOllM NUMBER Pt37 Cvtntion 12/11^019)

■Notice: This a^emenl andal) ofits Qlbtchmenis shnli become public upon submissioii to (Jovei^T tmd
^ccuiivc Cdiincil'for approval. Any infpimation that is-priyatCi confidcruial orpropriciary musl
.be clearly identified ip tlie agency.and attrccd to In vsTiiiiig prior to siting the cbrilraci,

^  AGREEMENT
The Slato.ofNuwVlompihire and the Cpriim'clor hereby niutbaillyagrcc as rollo>v$:

C.'ENERAL PROVISIONS

i. I0ENTIKICATIO>I.
1.1 .Stale Agency Na}nc

Nc\v Hampshire Department ofHeallh and Huntan Services

1.2 Slate Agency .Address

129 Plensant SUTCi j
rConcord.'NH 03301.3557

1.3 Ccmrracibr Naine

Anierica-s Youth Teenage Uheitiployiiienl
Reduction NciW-ork/Inc.

1.4 Coiiiraclor Address'

340 Granite Street Suite 1
Manchester.-NH, 03102'

1.5 Gontraclof, rhonc- „.
Number

(603) 32r.3'l;r6
c

liO Accduhl;Nunibcr

'05.95.-42-42l5l0^
66430000 ...

I..7 Complclion.Dnlc

6/30/2024 "

1-.8 PriccUmifelion

5400,000
f.

1.9 CohlractlngpfficcrforStolcAgeacy

RobcnAV. Moore, Director

1. 10 State AgcncyTclephone Nnnibcr

(00'3) 271-9631

1,11 Conlrnctdr Sjgnaturo
.r— Oft

.  1 joifL ■ ■
■1.12 Nnmc and Title of Coritritclor Jsignatoty

Allison Joseph.

Executive Director

.].1.3 ■Stflic'^r^^Staillihjre
y—~DecuU}nftd b/i

Joseph E. l^ibsa.iTi, Jr; fl^2022

1.14 Name and Titlc ofSl'nic Agency Sigrtiitbty
Joseph E. .Rtbsam, Jr".

Director
l .r.v- Appfdvari^'lHcTTHv Dcpartmctil uf Administration, Dlylsioh of Personnel 0/appl/cahfej

*  4 ^ .

By: Director, On: ,

1.16 Approval by the Attonicy Oeitoral (Form, SvJbsiance atid B^ccuiiflu) (if opplicaShJ ■

Bp- On: 11/0/2022

1.17' Approvfll by ibc.Govcniornnd Exccutlvo Council p/applicable) .

Ci«S:C,l(cn] nuntber: G&OMccliifgDatc: '

Page 1 of 4'

5  OS

■iJiCbritmclor Initirils^^.



Docusign Envelope ID; 5CAA5EE2-091D-4F1F-94CB^CEAD9072230

DdcuSign Envelope ID: 50dCAF2O-D12ME72.AF2O-5CC3EWCA5F7

OocuStgnEnvcl9po'IDV31A2022i-11F^^'82-B5CA^cWE63l4EE

2.. SERVICES TO BE Tli<? Sloie of New
Hampshire, acting through Jie. agency idcAtifwd in .block Li
("State"), en®g«'-conlnicW 'Identified in Week J'3
C'Contractor") in pcrfonn. and the CpniracKif sHallperfpfm, the-
\Nork'or.sale ofgoods, prbplh, idcnUfiedand inert particularly
dcicribcd In thC' altaclicd 0O{lBlf D whicli. is, incorporated
Iwrcin by reference ("Services'').-

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETfONOF SERVICES.
3.1 NotwiUwtahding- ghy provisioh of tills Agrccmchi to the
contrary, and subject ,lq il'ic approval of the Gpycnior and
Executive Council of tlie Slaie-ofNcwTIampsliIre, i.foppllcoble,
.ihis.Agrcetncni, and oU obligations ofllie parties h.erc:undcr, sKali
bcconic effective on the •date: the doycmof: nnd Executive
Council approve this A^coicnl ns .i.ndicotcd in block 1.17,
unless no such.npproval is required, in which case the Agrecmcm
shall bcconic cfTcetivc on thc.dnle the-Agreement is signed by
thc'Siaie Agency as sbptvi'i in bllKk 1.13 ("EficctiVc Date").
3.2 if llie Contractor commooccs the ScrVicCs prior to thb
Effective Dale, all Services pcrformcd^by thcGdntnictbr prior to '
the Effecliw Date: slinll be pcrfomt^ aljlic solc^^lsk of the
Contractor,.and in the cvCnWhiit tbij-Agrcenwnt docs not tecbnic
cITcclh'c, the- State shall liavc no liabtllly to the -.Conlr/ictori
including .without llmi'tatib.n., aiiy. o.blisalioh- -tO' pay the
.G.ptifracior for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor .must complcic.ail Service^'by the. Completion-Dale
specified in block L?.

4. CONOrnONAL NATIJRK OF AGREEMENT-
Ndlwillistnndiiig any provision .of .this Agreement to the
conirciy, All dbligalions of the State- hcrcundcr, Ihcluding.
wjiliout limhftiioh, the continubhcb of payinenls iicrchndcr. nrc
contingent upon (he availability and cdnlinucd appropriation of
•/funds .afTcct'cd by apy .state or federal legislative or cxcaitiy.c
nclion ih^t reduces, cliniinaiM or olhcnviw .ni.oiJifics, the
appropriation .or avallabilhy of funditigTpr this Agrccincnl- and-
' the Scope fbi; &,rviccs-,prqvidc.d iri EXHiuiT B, in >st!oic or lii-

parL. In. no event sliaM (lie State, be li^te for rany payments
hercundof in .excess of such aynilablc appropriated funds: In ibc
event of a rtduoilo.h or tcrnUrialibn br dpproprlniltd funds, i\w
State shall luvc the righl-tb wiililibld pAyhicnt-vniiil fiucli funds
become nvniloble, ifcvcr, and slmll-hove the right to rudnco or
icrrninatc the Se'rvicos,under this Agrednicht Immediately upon
giving the Cohtraclor noticc of such re'dudtidn Or Icmviimiifth:
The Stale shall not be required lo'transfcr -fu.iids iloni iiny other
nccoimi or source to.thc.Acco.unt Identified In block l.6'ln the
cxtnt fundsjn-thai Accouniarc redticcd.of iinaxmilable.

5. eONTfUCTTRlCET'RiGE LI^!!TAti6^7 '
PAYiMENT. ,
5.1 llieconirhct price,''rricihed ofpaynicnt, and ichns ofpayiriem
arc itlcnilfidd and mor.c paniculnrly described in EXHIBIT -C
vyhlch is incAiporatcdihc.rciribyrcrcrctjcc. .
"5.2 The payment by die State of the contract'|)rlcc::slnill. be the
only- and the complete rehnbui^eincnt^lpithe'Coniroctor-for nil
expenses, qf whatever nature ■Incurred by the Contractor In tlic
pcrrpmiancc, horcpf. and sliall lie the only and the coinplcio

compcnsotibn to the-ConuTietpf forihc ^rs'lccs. Thc'.Swto'sbali
hove no liabilit)* to the Contraet.orothcrthan thc conlmcfpficc.
5 J. Tlie-Slate-'rcser\'es-the rigjit lo offset from atiy lamounls
qihcnvisc payable to the Conlrticior under this Attrccmcnt those
liqiildalcd. aroounis required or permitted by f4,H. RSA 90:7
through RSA 80;7-c or'any ptiier provision law.
5.4 Nbtwithsiaiiding any provision in this Agreement (b. the
.contrap', and nolvviilistnnding uftexpccicd circumsfahccs, in lio
cstnt shall, the total of all payments authorized., or actuallymade
.hcfcundcr, exceed the Price Liriiitatiori set Idfth In block I ;8.

6^ COMPUANCE DV GOiNTRAerOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAl EMFLOVjVIENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 in connection with the pcrtbnnanec of ihe' Serviecs, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable itntiites, laws,
regulations, and onlers of fedchal, stnte^ coimty or municipal
authorities which jmposc any obligation or duty upon 'the
Contractor, includine, bin not Ihiiited lo. clviJ..ri^tS'and tquiil
"employment opportunity Ittws. In addition; If this A^ciuenfis
funded In any pbrlby monies pfllii.Uniltd State5,.tl>c Contractor
shall comply with'nji federal executive drdcrs/niles. rcgulailpns
raid statutes, attd with any i;iiles, r^ulationsnndgui.ddiricsas.tbe
Slate or the United States Issue to impicmcnt ihcsc regulaiiqns,
Thc-Gqiuracior shalf also coniply-wlih aif applicable inicilcctital
property Inw.*;.
6.2 'Purii»g ihc-lerm of this Agreement, thc Corilractor.jlipIl not
dlscrhninote- qgainsi employees' or opplidorits Tor ct'nployrnenf
because of race, color; religion, c'fecd, age, iex,.hahdicftp; scxi«I

'•orlcnVaiion,orna.tibnal origin and will takddffinn.ntivc.oc(ldn iq.
prevent such discrimination.
6.'3. The Contractor agrees to pc'miil the SiatCior Unttal Slater
access lo.nhyofihe Cdiuroctor's books, recpnis.oiid nccounls for
ihc.purppscofascertaining compliance with allTulcs, regulations
and orders, and die covenants, tcrnis .hud -conditions of'this
AgrccmcnI.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 TheComraciorshairnt its o.\vn uxpciisii,providerin'ptrsohricl'
necessary to perform the Services. Tti'd-Contntcior wtffrnuts.tlujt
all personnel, engaged .in the. Scrwccs. sliail, be. qualified id
pcrfonn the. Services, and shall be properly licensed ,.a,nd
othcnYise authorized lo.do.jp under,all nppiicabl.e.laws.
7:2 Unless otherwise nulhoriyxc) In .iVTlting. during the, "term of
tliis Agrcctncm; and for a-period of six (6) mquths aficr ihc
Cqmplelion'Date in-block L7, ihc Contractor shall not liirc/hnd
-sliall no} pcrniii any subcomnictor or oilier person, fj;^' dr
corporation, with, wliom it Is engaged m a combined'effort io
pcifohn the SctvIc'cs to hire, any .p^rson.whq Ish §tntc employee
or oft'icial, who is materially involved, in the procurcmchlj.
administration of perfprimancc Of this Agreement,' This
provision shall survjvc.'icrmihaiionyrthis Agreement.
7.3 Tlic iCiuUraclliig bfficcr.specified. In block 1.5", or Ids or Iwr.
successor, sholl.b© the,Slate's fcprcscnlflltyc. In the event ofany
dispute concerning the inlorprctaiicm of'lliis AgrecnicJii; llic
Conlracling Offieef's decision shallibo niialTor'tlie Slate.

Page 2 of4
Cciritrnclcif Initials
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8; EVE^T•■OF DEFXULTOENIEDI ES.
5.1 Any ptie or more of the fdllpwir^ ocU oronussiom.of.ihe
Coiumclor.?hall constituie nn event oTdcfiiull hcrcundbr ('•Event '
pfDcrauli"):
8.1.1 failure to perform (he ScfNues satisfactptiiy.-or on
■schedule;
8.1.2 fai(urc to submit any report required.hcrcuridcr;.artd/or
8.U failure to. perform any dtlKrcovcharit.icrm.or iipriditiph of-
(his Agrtcthcni.
8.2 .Uppnthe occurrence of any Event of Default, ilicSiaie may
take anyone, or more, or oil, orihc-follovvlng actions^
8:2.1 give the .Coniracioro witicii noticespcclfylng'thc Evcni of
Default and requiring li tO'bc remedied \nthin,.ln;tho absence of
a greater oV.lcsscr spccificatipn of time, thirty (30) clays fronitlw
dole of the notice; and if ilio Event of Default is not''timely cured,
terminate,this Agrcemcni.'elTcctive t\vo (2) days nfier giving the
Coniraclor-noticc.of tcrminallDn;

• 8.2;2 give the'Gonlractor a'written frdticd spcclfyiogihc Evchi of
Defnuli and suspending nil payments, to bo niadc under ihi?
Agfccriieiit.'and ordering tluit the portion of the cdniratt pried;
wliich'i Vs-oiild Pthersyisc .accrue to ilie. Contractor during the.
.period from the date of such notice until such'time as the. Slate-
detcmiines that the Gonira^or hu: cttrcd thc;Evcnt of Default
shall never be pnid-ip thc Gpntracior;
8.2.3 glvp.llic Cpntroclorn Avrihcn notice specifying ihe.Event of
Default and.sct ufl* ngainst'sny oilier pbUgnlions thcStaic iriny
oVvc'to the C.onlr&ctor nny dqmsgcs thciStntc siiffcrsby rcason'of
ohy Evc'nt.'of befQull; ojxl/or ^
8.2.4 give thc.Cohtrnctpr a vvriticn hoilcc spc'difymfi the Event df
■Default, treat the .Agreement ft.s breached, i'crmiiwtc. 'the
Agrecmchl atid ptirsuc any of its remedies at Invy or hi equity,.or-
both.
8.3. No failure by the Siatc'ld enforce any provisions hereofa'Dcr^
any Event of Dcfaulishall be deemed a !tvajvcr of its rightsAvilli
regard io'lhat Event, of Default, or lu^ subsequent Event of
Pcfaull, No express failure to crifbrcc.ony Event orpefaulishail
be'dccmed a woiw ofthc right of the State to enforce cacli arid
all of the provisions hereof ujwn any .further or other Event of
Default on tlfe pan of tho Contractor.

^.TERMINATION.
P.I Notwiihstiiiding. paragmph 8. the ,S(atc may, at Us. solo
dhcrciiori, icrminiitc the. Agrecmchl for any rea.^n,riu wholedr
iii pm-t. by thirty,(30) days;wktcn;nolicc,t6 tlic Gpntrhclor ilm't
the Stoic.is-cxerctsing its pptipn'to icrniinatc the Agrecmchl.

In Ihc ovepi of on early .Icmiination of this Ag^cmciii. .for
any reason olhcr Ihiiiijlic completion of t)ic Services; (he,
CPntraclor slunlli at the Stat'c's .discfctlori, 'deliver to .ibd
CiOritraclihg OiTlcer, not Ihtcrihrih riRceh (15) days nftcr.thc dare
oT tcfminaiipii, aycpori (nynninaiip'n Report")'describing in
detail all Serv'lccS pcrlbrni;^, arid the contract prlc.e .earned, ty
andJnclumng the dnic.of tmninallori. Tlic.fojm, subject imiiicr,.
content, and number qf copies; of the. Tcrmlnotlon .Report shali •
be. j'dcnticql to those of ariy.Fiiuil Report described in the attached
EXmlJIT B. In additipiynl the Sthlc^s discretion, ihtt^ohlrnctof"
shall, within 15 daystifripticeofcarly Lcrminalionj develop tm'd

submh to (he Srate q. Transition Plan for si^lcej under the
Agrcomcnt.

10. DAtAy^GGESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.
lO'.l" Asuscd iii thls Agrccmcnt, the word '■data"'slian mean all

Infdmibiido niid.things developed o'roblained during the
pcrfonnunco of, or acquired or devdbpicd by reason of. tlils.
Agreement, including,.but not liraltcd to. nli studies, reports;

; ni.es, fcimiulac,,siirvcy5, maps, charts; sound recordings, .yidcq
rccbrdhigs, pictcria! rcproductfoiis, dravvini^, analyses, graphic
rcpfescntadons, coinpiilcr prognmis, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, oli Nriiciher
finished or lui'flnishcd.

" i p.2"All dato and any property vyhlch has been received from
the Sln'tc or purchased; wliH'furids'proviried for,(hat piirposo.
nhricr this Agreement; shall be thcpropcrty of the State, and
shall be relumed to (he. Stiaid u|:mn demand or tipon .tcrminntion

-.Of this Agrccrncni for.any reason.
10.3 Confidciillality of data shall bcgovcfTicd by .N.bj.RSA
chapter 91 -A or other c.vlsting low. Disclosure df data ccquit"
prior vvriitcn-i^proval of the State,

,ll.-CdNTRAlCTOR'SREtA1ION TO TJIE STATE, In the
performance of.this Agreement ilie Conirucior is In ull respects
nn Independent coiitractoh and Is neither on agent .nor -ari
employee of the SiatC; Neither the Contractor nor aiiy 'of its
olTiCcrs, cmp1o;^ccs, ogenis or members shall hm'C'auihbrity to
bind the Sihtc.or.i'ocejvc any bciicfitj, \y6rkcfs'-wmpensatiqh or
other emolument.^ provided by ,the Stale to its employees'.

J2. ASSIG^VlENT/I)ELECAtTON«UBCONTMCT?.
12.1.The Gotiiractor shall nol,a«iBni or o|iicr\yisc transfer qtiy
interest in ihi$:Agrecmcnl without the priorwrittcn nb.licc, which
shalfbc jJtavidcd to the State nl least fi fteen (15) days prior to
;the assignmctit, ond'a \vritlcn consent of the State. For pur^ses
of ibis pafa^ph, n Ghangc- of Control .sitall c0nsiltuic'
assljgnmem.- ' "Change of ."Cdntror" means' (ji)- ' merger,
con^liilat.iijn.^br a t ransaction or .series ofrchlcd transacijons in
which 0 third parly, together •With its nffiliqlcs; becomes the.
dircct'O/ indirect owiier. of fi fty percent (50%) or more of the
voting .shares, or similar cqnity inlcresfs, or combined voting
l>ower of the Contrncipr, or (I) ihc.sale of all or substantialiy all
of (he asscls of the (jonlractqr.
12.2 None, of the Scrv'ices. shall be. subcqmractcd by Ihc
Conlrhcior vviihoiil prior \vrlUcn nolicc and cpiikcrit of tlic;StatC;
The.Staic.is.cnIillcd'lo.cdpicsdfalKsiibconlhicis.and.assijgnracnl
ngrce'ments hnd shall libl be bound by aiiy prtTyisibfis-cohtajhcd
in n Subcontract or, nn o^lghmcrit. agreement to which .li Is not a
party-

I3.-INDliMNlFiCATION. Unless otherwise cxcniplcd by law,
(he Contractor'Shflll indcnuiify- and hold harndoss the State, its
officers nnd employees, from and Hgainsi any and all claims,
llabilitips and costs for tuiy personhl injury or prop'crty darriagcs,
p.iicnt rfr copyri^n infringcm'cnt.orollwr.clninisnsscricd.ogninsl
tlic Stale; its bfficcrs oromployccs, whidi arise outbT:(or which
may bb ^sl^^'-ciniincd (o arise out, of) Ihc acts ;or qm
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'Controclor, or, subcontractors, mciuding biii nor llmiied.to the
;^i^i£cncc,,rMlcic5S'or inicniionnl conducl. The Siale sluU nol^
-be liablo for any costs incurred by (he Contractor flrlsitig under
'thisparagraph l.V NolwilhstandingtlioTorcgoing, nolhit'ighcrciii
contained ̂iall be deemed to.consliiutc a tyajvcfof the sovereign
■hnmunity ofthe State; which jmiiiuhily is hereby reserved to the
Stole. This 'covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the*
•lermihfiiion.df lhis Agreerhcnt.

t'l, IiNSORAh'CE.
i.4,1. Tlic- Contractor shall, lit lis. sole expense, obtain and
(iwntltiuously maintain in force, arid shall require any

^subcontractor pr ossigncc to obtnin and maintain in force, thic
foHowing jhsurance:
14.1.1 coniinicrcial gcricraT liability ihsiirarice ngninst nll cia{nt.s
of bodily iiijiiry; derith' or property 'damaged in amounts of not
•lesj liiaii'Sl.CldO.dOO per oecilrrcncc and S2.060.p00 aggrcgale
Sfcxccss; and
14.1 .'2;Speclal ciiusc.of loss covernge fdnp covering all property

.5ubjccPto.sttbp8ragraph 10.2 hercinj in an nntounl not less than
i8P% oftl^'.whole replacement value of the-prcpcrty. '
142 The politics described in subparagr^ph M. i' herein shall be

'pa policy fprms-aud widorseDtena approved for use In tlie State
of Ne.vvvHampshirc by the N:H. bepnirtmcrit of Insurattvc, atid;
issued by insurers licensed In the Stnjc of New l lampsbirc.
143 Thc.-Gonifncior ahall furnlsli to the Cpmracling OfRbcr
Idcnliftcditrblbck' 1.9, or his or her successor, a ecrtincatD(s) pf
msuroricL* for nil insumnc'c required under this Agrccnicnt.
^pntracipr Shall also furnish to the CqaVrncrmg Officer iticnlified
jn block .i.O.ipr his or her siicccssor, ccitifici)tc(s) pf lnsurancc
lbrajl.rcncw;ii(s) of insurance required undcr'tbis Agrcimcrit no
later llian ten (iOj days prior to the-oxpiralfpn date of cticli
insuraiicc pojicy. The ccrtifichtc(s") of Insnrhiicc and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and arc Incoiporatcd herein by.
reference.

15. AYOJIKII^'COMPENSATION.
15.1- By signing this'agrcciucnl; the Contractor ngrccs, certifies
ond >vari-imts.thot the Coirtructor is »n cqniplinnccwitji or c.xcnipt
from, Uic.rcquircm RSA chapter;281-yV f '/PbrAcrx"
C.wipsftsnjlojyj. ' '
f5.2 To Ijic cxieni tlic Conirficior is subject ip the rcquirctricnls
oTN:H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contrnctbr' shall jnaintain, and
require iui/.siibcoritriictdr or assignee, to secure arid itiaininiii,
payihcnf of Wdrkcrs' CoinpciiSatiori in 'conncciidn with
aclivitics whitli the person propDses.to uiidcjtakc'pwrsHaiil,(Q liiis
AgrcetricnL, TlibC^riiractorshull furnish the GpiilractliigGfTtccr
Idcnf i ficd iij block 1.9, or his or her svicccssor, proof of Workers'
t'ompcnsatiOn in the nianrier described in ,N.I l: RSA chapter
281-A mnd'aiiy'applicnbie'renewals) thereof; which .shall he
Htrached wtd tdc ineorporaied herein by rcfcrciicc. ,nic Stole
shuH not bo. .responsible, for ;paymcnl of ony SVo'rkcrs'
C^Jmpcrishtibii .prciniuins or.Tbr any oilier claiin or-bdncfil for
Cbri'tfaetdr, or any subcontrnclor or cihplbyec. of^Contraclor.
.winch miglii ,arise under ripplicablo State oT lScw Hanipsliire
Workers". Goinpchsflllon. laws in 'connection ' \yllh tlic
pcrformance'p/.llic Services under this Agreement.

16., NOTICE. Atiy.rioticc by n party Iwrdp- iq tlteother,party
sliall.be deemed to have been.'duly dclivc'rqd orgiven at lirc.ii.mc
of mailing by certified rnail. pq5lage.prcpald,,ln a United Stales
Post Onicc addressed to tlic p.viics at the addresses giycri in
blocks 12 and ■ 1.4, herein.

17. AMENI>MENT;.T1i1s Agfeccrient maybe nmended, vyalved
or discharged only by ari 'ihstrumou -in mitlng signed by the
parties licrcio and only aficr apprpynl 'of .such onvctidmcnt,
woivcf or discharge,by ri fib;Oovcmor';b'nd ,U.\ecutivc Couiicll .of
the Slaltfdf'Uow.Hrmipshire I'lMlctf ho,soc.H.apprpval is required,
under,thecitcimislQriccs'pii'rsu.antiib'Stalc-lawVnilc or policy.

18. CIIOICE OF LAW AND FORUM-.TliisAgreeincnt shall
be governed, interpreted and construed In accordance witli the
iavvs o'Flbc Stale of New "Harnpsliirc, an,d Is binding upon and
inwrcs to (he benefit ofthe parties and thcif respective .successors
a«cl:nssigris. Thowxirdliig iiscd'irithis Agrccmerilisthe vvording
chosen by the parties to express their mtitual inlenl, lutd no hile
oi conslruclion.shall bc'npplied a8.'\1iisi .or,fn ftvor of any party.
Any actions itrlslng out of ihis Agreement 'shall he brought and
mairilaincd in \'c\v,Wanipshi,r,c SuperioV Court wlilcli slmll have
excjiBlVcjurisdictlo'ri thciCbf: •

19. C.ONFLlCflKN'C^ lii the uvcril of connict
between the (crinj of form;(as:niodincd in EXHIBIT
A) and/or nfiachmcms arid atriendincnt tHcrcof. thc.icrnis ofthc
P-37 (asiuodified in EXHIBIT A) shall cohlrol.

20. THIRD' PARTIES. Tlic particl Hereto do not intend to-
benefit mf Ihird .parties 'and- .this A^cc'mciit shall riot b,c
con.strui^ tbco'rifcr hriy sudvbcncril;

21. nEAOINGS. The.Iieadlngsih,ri5ugbpui,tho,Agrecniciii are-,,;
(br reference purposes only,, and'the words cotitiuncd thcrdii
shall in no way bo held to-cxplnln, modi,iy,.nmplify or fiid-in the
Interpretation, epnalrucilon or nicanliig of the provisions of this
Agreomcnt. " .

22. SPEGUI. PROVISIONS. Addition^! or iimdifyiriB'
^provisions ret fbrlhih tlic altaHicd.EXHlDIT.-A are meorb^irale'd
herein by rcfcrcticc. ^

23;. SEYERABILlTV.,Jii!.hctjycnlnfiy pfthc'prqyisionsoflhis
Agrcctnchl nrc hckl.by.a Cq»irl',ofcp,nipetcrji,jurisdictiotj ,tp be-
cpnlinty ip anysinlc or fcdci^f aw,jhc.rcmamVng prpyisiotts of
lljis Agreement wiil rcniiilii lit Rtll,force nnd-.crfcci.

24. ENl'lilE A"CJRREMiiNT..Tliis Agrccmcrit, Winch mriy be
executed Id a number of .cdimtcrp^S.-Oacli-of vvhiob $hi\ll bo
dcofucd 'o'ri' original, 'cdiisHlihes the catlrc' agrcemciil ,ftnd
uiidcrstah'dinjg' between trjc.^pu'riics,- 'iiri;d supers'qde..'!- hi) .prior
ngrccmcriis and im(icrsi.nndin'es with respect to the subject mailer
iKvcof.
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Competency and Credit Earning Tutoring

'  EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agroomont Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1; Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3'1. Notwithslandirig any provision of this Agreenient to the conlrarY, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Gouficll of the.
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties'^hereunderj -shall become effective upon-

' Governor and. Executive Council approval or on December 1, 2022,
whichever is later.

1.2., Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up five (5) additional years
•from the Cbmpletion Date, contingent' upon satisfactory delivefy- of
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies, and-approval 6? the
Governor and Exeaitive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegatjbn/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as-follows;

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those condilions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be perfo|med,
and if applidable, a Business Associate.Agreement. in'accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and' Accouhtability Act, Written
.agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed: The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
arinually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any Inadequate
subcontractor performance.

SS'202W)CYF-12«COMPE-Ol A-1.2 Contfactor inlUaJs
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. EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement.of tlfVork I

1.1. The Contractor must'provide Competency and Credit Earning Tutoring in this
agreem"ent to youth at Sununu Youth Services Center (SYSe).

-1.2; The ephtractpr must ensure services are available at SYSC in Manchester,
New Hampshire.

■1.3. ' For the purposes of thisAgreenient. ail references to days must mean.buslness
^  days;, excluding stMe .and federal holidays. .

'  - ■ Ppr thp .purposes of this :Agreement, all referehcoe to business .hctirs mtist
mean Monday.through Fhdayfrom 8:00 a.mi to 4;00 p.m.

^  _ '

1.6. The .Contractor must' collaborate with - the Departrnent to, provide
comprehensive; 'engaging and individualized secondaryeducationaj' seiyices-;
post-secondary plannlng, career exploration, and enipIoymenMralnipg tp-yPuth
in ordorMo'aid iri Ihe'deyelopnient of skills,-goals andself-confiderice.

1.6. the Contractor must provide administrative support and collabdration with
sendirig school districts regularly.

1.7. ■ The Gontraetor must vyork coiiaborativelywitlvthe Department staff to provide
»  a rninimurri of four (4)'to five (5) educators, during normarsChdol. hours,-five

days a week, to provide and support educational/vocational services to iip to
sixteen ('16) yputb at SYSC.

1.8- The Contractor must provide all necessary academic requirerrients Including
'  but rtol limited to: ' . ■ .

1.8:1. :.English

1,8.2. .History ^
1;a.3. . ' .Math "■ ' '

.  1.8.4. -Science

Tsi: Health ^
1-8.6. -Art

1.8.7. Physical EciUcation ■ , '
1.9. The Contractor must.prpyicle-all materiale, ,,currlculufh and'lesSon planning

required for-educatlonal programming. ' • *
1.16. The 'eonlractor must determine the needs' of'each youth by ..conducting

•asses^meAtudlB^Tng.-guirtdnpp-jBhdco.unseling'tPide'ntitya holishP^approachto
sorving^h© youth". .

SS-2023-DCyF.i2-COMPE:'0,1 " - ■B.S.O" ' Conlfaa6r'lrJlI;\li,
Ameflca'sYpuUiTo^aga'UpoTOploymcnt ' ' ■11/9/2P22
NcivfprK, Inc., ' ■ F^oiorn Dau> " ' /
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New Hampshire DBpartment of.Healih and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B

■1.11. The Contractor must work coliaboratively with Department staff to provide
youth combihation of direct instruction and tutoring for developing
competency and credit earning, including but not limited to:

-1.11.1. .. Academic,Instruction

1.11.2. Hi SET or CCilege Preparation

1.11.1 Career .Exploration ' /
1.11.4. Paid and Unpaid.lnternship .
1.1-1.5. Occupational Training. - i '■
1;11.6; Leadership skill development
1.11.7. ' FinanciaLGapabinty Training
1.11.8. . Job PlaceiTient Assistance

.. 1.11;9.* .Follov/up .Support '

1.11.10. Supporth/e Services

1.11.11, Barrier Rerhoval

1.12. The Gontractor must ensure that each 'classroom Is equipped with a
Department provided computer for eaOi^ student and that has access to the
internet as needed to complete cbursowork.

1.13. The Contractor must collaborate wlthjocal partners to provide a hdli'stic-
approach to serving youth based on individual needs. Partners include but are
not limited to: ^ ■

1.13.1. High schools
1.13.2. -Employers
1.13.1 Colleges;
1,13.4. Social Service agencies

1.1.4. The Contractor must provide wrap-around.communify-based supports to,youth
returning home ffoiti^SlYS(3 through the In-Schopl youth progranis through the
N'ev/ Hampshire (NH) school systems, Including but nbt'limjted to;
1.14.1. Manchester-Central. West and "Memorial'
1.14.2. Nashua. North arid:Sputh •- >

1.14.3. Franklin

1.14.4'. Spaulding; ^
1.15; The Contractor niust provide v/rap-around conirhuhity based supportsjtcryouth

Hi. SS-2023^YF-12-COMPE-01 D-2.d ContraclOf Inlliata.
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EXHIBIT B-

returning home from SYSC through the oul-df-school youth programs
throughout NH, including but not limitedlb:

1.15.1. Greater Manchester

1.15,2.. Greater Nashua ^

1.15.3. Lakes Region

1.15.4. Seacpast " .

1.16. The Contractor must participate in meetirigl^.v^lth the Departrrient oh a weekly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Depaiimerit.

1.17. The Gpntraetor may participate in on.-site reviews conducted ,by the Department
pri a.querterly basis, or as otherwise requested by the peparlment.

1.18. The Gonlractor must ensure Staff participate In annual training Phi topics
Including but not limited to Prison Rape Elirriinatlbn Action ,(PREA)i es provided
by the Department. ,

1.19. The Contractor rhust utilize the Canvas Student Management'Software along
with the integrated Discovery topi for lesson plan supplemehtatipn. managed by
the bepartmerit.of Education to supppft.all classroom lesson plans, grading,
and other student nnanagement components.

1.20. The Contractor must, attend all required Security and Privacy Trainings as
determined by the Department.

1.21. -Reporlihg'

1.21.1. The Coiitraclor must submit monthly reports to ensure adequate
youth education and programming which Include, but are not limited
to:

1:21.1.1. Progress Reports.. ,

1.21.1.2. Grading Reports.

i .21.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the .Department In a fbrrriat spfe'cified fay the Department:,

1.22. Rerforrnance Measures

1,22.1. The Department will 'mphitof Contractor perfofmaned by monitoring
,  . ■ ^ pro'gram outcome.s including but rjpt limited to;

1.22.1.1.. 90%-of youth receiving educatlpna) services vi/IH earn
educational credit.

1.22.T;2. 100% of the youth's iEP'y504 plans vi/i!l be supported by the
contractor and adhere to. IEPs/504s, including allpridance

SSt2023-ZX:YF-12-(SDMPE-01 B-2.0.' Contracted lhlli»|j
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EXHIBIT B.

to IEP/504' Meetings arid' the development, of IEPy504
revisioris- . •

1.1. Background checks ^ ■
1.1.1. The Contractor must conducl cr^iminal background checks, at'fls own

expense, and not irtilize any-End Users, to fulfill ttie obligations of the
Contract who have been .coriyicted' of any, crime, of dishonesty,

,  including but not limited to criminal fraud,, or othervyise co.nvicted of
aiiy felony, or misderneanor oWense. for which incarceratioh'-for tip. to
1 year Is an authorized penalty..The Corilractpr agrees It will.ihjtiatea
criminal background check re- investigation of all' ■employe'e's,
volunteers, interns, and subcohlractofs assigned to 'this, Contract

.every five (5)'yeans, The five (6) year period will be based on. the date
of the lasi Criminal Background Check cpjidu,cted: ,by the Contractor.

1.1.2. The Contractor must promote and rnaintalfi an av/arehess of the.
importance-of securing, the Depajtmenlls' -.information among the
Contractor's End Users. Contractor's End User> shall fibl I5e
permitted to handle., access-, view, store or discuss Confidential Data

■ until ah attestation is received by the .Contractor thatf.II Contractor
End Users .assocla'ted wlth fulfilling the obligations of'this .Contract
are, based-Ori criteria provided herein are, eligible to participate iti
\york associated with this Contract.

1.2. Privacy Impact Assessment

.  1.2.1.. Upon request, the Contractor must allow- and ^assist the Departrnent
in conducting a Privacy .Irripact.. Assessipent (PIA)" of Its
8ystom(s)/applicatlon(s)/web 'portal{8)Avebslte(s) or Department
•sy5tem(s)/0pplication(s)/web portal(s)Ayebsite(s) hosted by the
Contractor, If Personally Identifiable Information .(PI!) is, .collected,
•.Used, accessed, shared, or stored, to conduct the'PlA.the'.Contractor.
must provide ;the Department access to applicable- systems and,
dpcumehtatibn' suffibient to allow the Department to assessi at
jTiinlnium. th*e following:
1.2,.1 A. How Plj Is gathered and stored;
1.2.1.2. Who v/il!.have access to Pli;
I'Z.l.a. How PI! will be used in the system;

■ 12.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved, and revoked;
and

.W
1-2.1.5" Privacy practices.

SS-2p'2S;bCYF-l2^0MPE^1 D-2.0. " Cc^factW Wtlote'
ifUTief|.ca'f,you!hTpeliafle Unemproymwi Redu-iHon 11^9/2022
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EXHIBIT B

1.2.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of Plii '

1.3. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.3.1. If Contractor End Users are authorized by. the Department's
Informatipn Security Office to use a Department issued device (e.g.
computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or access the Department
nehvofk in the fulfilment of this Agreement, the selected Vendor must:

1.3.1.1. Sigri apd abide by applicable Department and New
Hampshire peparlment of Information Technology (NK
DolT) use agreements, policies, standards, procedures
and guidelines, and complete applicable trainings as
required: • ' •

^  1.3.1."2. Use the information that they have permission to access
solely for coriducling official Department business and
agree that all other use or access js strictly forbidden
including, but not limited, to personal or other private and
non-Department use, and that at no time 'Shall .they
access or attempt to access information vi/ithout having
the express authority of the Department to do-sci'

1.3.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information In a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedure's,
and/dr.agreement relating to system entry/access;

1.3.1.4. Not.copy, share, distribute, sub-license, rnodify, reverse
engineer, rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or
being evaluated'by the DeparUnent, and at all times must
use u^osl care to protect and keep such software strictly
confidential in. accprdance, with the license or any other
agreement executed by the Department; ^

.1.3,1.5. Only'.use equipment, spltware; or subscrlptloh(s)
authorized by the Department's Informatipn Security ■■
Office or deslgnee;

1.3.1,6, Not install non-slandard software tin any Department
equipment unless authorized by the DepaTtment's
Information Security Office or deslgnee;

'1,:3;1.7-. Agree that email and other electroriic communication
,  messages created,, sent, and received on.a Departiiioht-

issued email system are the property of the-Depariment

fW -
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of New Hampshire and to be used for business purposes,
only, Email is defined' as "internal email systems" or
"Department-funded email systems."

1.3.1 ;8. Agree" that use of email must follow Departmenf .anti N"H
DoIT policies, standards, and/or guidelines: and

1.3.1,9. ^ Agree when utilizing the Department's email System:

1.3:1.9.1. To only use a Department erhait ;address
assigned to them with a
■affiliate,DHHS,.NH.G6v". -

1,3.^1.9;2., "Include in thp-signature lines infprmatibn
"ildentlfying the End User as a non-Department
workforce member; and

1.'3.1.9.3; Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
■  . embedded underneath the signature JineV

■confidentiality NOTICE:, "this rnessage.may
contain information that is privileged and confidential
.and is" Intended-only forihe use. of the" individual(s)

.■. 'td:whorn it is addressed, Ifyou receivethis.niessage
^  ' in e.rror, please notify the sender Immediatety and

delete Ihis.electronlc message arid any atfachiTients
frpm ypur system. .Thank you for your cooperation,'

I.3.I..IO. Conlraptpr End Users with a Department issued email,
•access oTpotentlal access'to Confidentiai Data, ^end/of a
-v/prkspace in ,a Department building/facility, rhust'

'1.3.1.11. Complete tlie Department's Annual Inforrhation Security
& Compliance Awareness Training prior to accessing,
yiowing/handtlng, hearing",, .or transmitting .Department
Data or.Confjdential Data. ' •

1.3.1:12. Sign the Dep'artmerit's Business-Use arid GOnfidohtiality
Agreemehtvand Asset Use Agreement,'and'the ;nH Doit
Department wide Computer Use Agreement .upon

V  execution of the Contract 'and annually thrpugh'oul the
Contract term.

1.3.1.13-. Agree. End -User's" will only .access the Department'
■ Intranet to view the. Department's Rolicies. and
Procediires and lhformatlo.n SecurityAvebpages.

.  1:3,1.14, .Agree,.If.any.End Userjs fo.und to be in violaiipn Oi^y of
'  the above^Department terms and coriciitiorisi efi the

.SS-2b23.DCYE.12JCOrtP;E-bl -8-2.0 Ccnlract<y IniUait i N
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Contract, said End User may face remoyal from the
■Goritracl, and/or crmiirial and/Or-.civil prosecution; if the
act constitutes a vioiatidn of law.
Agrees to notify the Department a iriinimum of three
business days, .prior to any upcoming transfers or
terminations, of End Users vvtio possess Department
credentials and/pr badges or Who have system privileges.-
If .Ehd-Users who."possess Department croderitials and/or
badges or Who have syMem privileges resign or are
dismissed without advance n'ottce, the .ConlracVor agrees

'  to notify the Deparlment'sThforrriatlon Security Office or
designee immediately. / ■ "

1,.3.2. Workspace Requlremeni
1.3.2.1., If applicable, th'e Deparlment will work with Contractor ,to

■ determine requirements' for . providing necessary
workspace and State equipment for its End Users.

1.4. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services.

1.4.1. -General Requirements
T.4.1.T' If applicable,, upo.n termination or expiration of the

Contrac't the. RaVties agree to, cooperate in good faith to
effectuate a smooth secure'transitlon.oftheServicesfrom
the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Departmehi to. assume the
Serylcps-preyi.dusly performed by the Contractor for this

. section .the ,new Contractor shall' .be known as
"Recipient")- Ninety (90) d.ays prior to trfe end-df the-

. contract or unless otherwise^speclfied by the Department.
)  the Cpritracto; must begin working wiU,i the. Department,

and if applicable, the. new-'Recipient to develop a Data
Transitiori Plan (DTP). The Department shall provide the

,  DTP ternplate to, the. Contractor; ^ '
1.4.1.2. The Contractor must use reas.onable..efforts 10 assl.st .the

Recipient, Ift ■cdrfhectlon "with the 'trarisltidn.. frPm "the"
perfqrm.ance of Sefyic.es by the jCbntrac'tor .and its End
Users to the perforfnance of-silch Services; This may'
include'a.ssistarice ,with the secure transfer of recprdis-
(electroriic and hard'copy), 'transition of hls'tdricai data
(electronic and hard copy); .the. irahsitlon of-any sudh
Service" from th.e hardware, software, 'networico^nd

SS.2023.DCYF-12.cdMPE^1 0-2.0 ConlrBctOflnlHaU I '
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■lelecorinmunications equipment and' internet-related
'  . infornriation technology Infrastructure ("internal, -.IT

• Systems").of Gontractorto'the internariT SystOms of the
Recipient, and cooperation with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged- by Recipient In
connection with the Transition Services^

1.4;1;3. If a system, database, hardware, software, ahd/pr .
software licenses (tools), was purchased or created to
manage, track, andyor sj.pre pepartm.ent .Data In
relationship to ttiis contract said Tools wlli be. Inventoried'-

^  . and returned to the Departmeri.li along wlth'the Inventory
doQuiTient, once transition of Departnfient .'Data is
complete. ' , . ,

1.4-1.4." The irtlernal planning of the Transition Services by the
Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the
Departm.arit and If applicable the Recipient in^-a tiniely '
manner. Any such. Transition Services shall be deemed"
■to be Services'fbr purposes of this Contract;.

1,.4,1.5. I Should the .d.ata Transition extend beyori'd theend.bf the
Contract.^ the Contractor agrees that, the Contract

r  rnfomnation Security RequirernentS/and [f appiicabie; the
Department's Business Associate Agreement terms- and
conditions remain in effect iiritif the Data Transition is
accepted as complete by th.e- Department,^

' 1.4;1.6. In the event' where the Contractor has- cpniingled
Debartment Data'and.thedestructjon.orTransltidn ofsaid
data is not.feasiblp.'the Dep.artnient and Contractor .vvIlL
jointly evaluate regulaloiy ahd professiorial standard's for
fetentlon requlrenierits prior to- d.estructio.rt, refer to the'

■  terms''and conditiohs of Exhibit K: DHNS Inforrnatlon
Security Requirements.

. 1..4;2. Compietion of transition Services
1.4.2.-1. ■ Each service or Transiti.qn ppais© shall .bb deemed

' completed (and the transition process finalized^-at;th6
end of 15 business days.;After th.e -pYoduct; i'esuitingTfrCTm
the Service,..'Is cieiivered to the Department •and/.pr the
Recipieht:in accprdahce with the .nuilually agreedtupo'n
Transition plan, unless within said 'l.S-busi'nes.s day-term
the Co.ntractor notifies the pepailmeot. of am jgsue
requiring additional time to complete .said produc^.

-SS-2023-bCYF-i2-.COMRE.pi 6.2.0. • Conlfafc<6f rriMatk I ' ^
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1.4.2.2. Once alt parties agree the data has been migraled the
Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data 'per the
terms and conditions of Exhibit K: bHHS Inforhiation
Security Requirements,

1.4.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1-.4;3.1.' in the event the Department is not satisfied with the
.results of the Translllon Service, the Depanrnent shall
■nQtify the Gohtraclor, by email, slating th'e reason for:th'e
lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final
product.orat.ahy time during the data Transition process.
The parlies shall discuss,the aclioiis to be taken to
resolve the disagreernent or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Pepartment shall be- entitled to
Initiate actions in accordance with the. Contract; . ■

1.5. Website and Social Media

i.5.1. The selected Vendor(s) must work vvith the Department's
Communications Bureau to ensure that any social media o.r-website
designed, created, or managed oh behalf of the Departmeht-meets
all Department and NH DolT website'.and social media requirements
and policies.

1:5.2, ■ The seiected Vendor(s) agrees Protected Health Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), or other^ Confidential
Infonnatiori solicited either by socia) media or the website that, is
tnaintained, stored-or captured must not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided In the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure ,of
PHIi Rll, or other Confidential Information Is subject to Exhibit K:.
Department information Security Requirements and Exhibit'I:.DHHS
Business Associate Agreement and olt applicable Department .and
federal law,, rules, and agreements,, Unless specifically required by

'  the Contract and unless clear notice is provided to users of the.
■website ,or so.cial rnedia, the Contractor agrees 'that site visitation
must hbl be tracked, disclosed or used for website or so'cial m'edlg
analytics or marketing.

1.5;3. ' State pf New Hampshire's Websjte Copyright
1.5.3:1' All right, title and iri'teresi in the State WwW Site, including

copyright to ail;Data'a'nd information, shall remain-with the
State of New .Hampshire. The State, of New Hampshire
■shall also, retain all right, fitle and interest In any user
•interfaces and coniputer instructions einbedded withiff the

SS-2p23rpCYF.i,2-CQMPB:P,t .D.2;0 Contrbcldr WPab Hi,
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WV\AA/pages. All WWW pages and any other .Data or
information shall, where applicable, display the: State of
New Hampshire's copyright.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1, The Contiactor must Use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compifance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Irtformation (Privacy'Rule) {45 CFR Parts 160 and 164); under the Health
Insurance Rbrtability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996; and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parlies.

;2.2. The ContrbctpfmusI manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordahce With ttie terMs of . Exhibit 'K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

.2.3, The COptfactor must comply with.'ail Exhibits D .through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

^  3.1.. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. the Coniractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation .or court orders, may have an impact on the Services
•described herein, the State has the right to m.odify Service priorities
,arid expenditure requirements Under this Agreement so aslo achieve
•compliance therewith.

'3.2. Federal iCivil Rights Law.s^ Complianco: Culturally ahd Linguistically
Appropriate Programs arid Services

3.2,1. The Confractof rnlist submit, vvithin' teri (10), days- of the -Agreemeht'
Effective Date, a .detailed description of the cornmupication access

,  and; language, assistance services' to' be' provided' to ensure
meaningful access fe programs and/or services .to Jndlyiduals. with
JImited English proficiency; individuals. Who are .deaf or havo. hearing
loss; Individuals who. are blind or have low vision; and i.ndividuals vyhb,
have 'speech' challenges,

4. Records . .
«  . *

4.1. The Contractor ip.iisi keep records that include, but are not limited to:
4.|;1, Books,, records, docLlrrients bhd other electronic Or physical data

evidehping and reflecting all ,co.sts and other expenses Irtcurre'd by the
■  Gori.tractor in the performance of .the Gontroct.-and all Income recelvod

p'rcb.ljecled by the Cpfltractor.

■3S-2023-0CYF-12-OOMPE-01 B-2.6 Cdnlliftctbr InKitJoj - j
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4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and propedy reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are accoplabie to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by

,  . the Department

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records rrtust inciudB all records of application and
eligibility (including al! forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding tho provision of services and, all-
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for Such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services,, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to ail reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes "of audit,
■examination, excerpts and■iranscripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number'of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder; the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parlies hereunder (excapt such obllgalipnB as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of, the term of'this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) must terminate, provided

. however, that ih upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the ̂ amount of such
expenses as are disalioyved or to recover such sums f'rom the Qpntfactor.

/—~—tl9
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. • 100% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Contractor, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement^ basis for actual experidilures
Incurred in the fulfillirient'of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits. C-1. and C-2, Budget Sheet,

4. The Contractor shall submit an Invoice with supporting documentation to .the
Departrrient no later than the. fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the'ContraGlof's Vendor Number Issued upon regTsterIng with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services. '

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or plherVifise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests paynpent for allowable costs- incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supportlrig documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
■ that may include, biit are not limited to, time sheets, payroii."records,
receipts for purchases, ond proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment

4:6. Is assigned. aTi electronic signature, includes supporting docu.mentatio.n,
and Is.emailed to DCYFInvoice5@dhhs.hh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
'12g pleasant Street
Concord, NH 033bt

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (3,0) days,
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for au'thorizod
expenses, subsequent.to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no .later than' forty (40) days after the cohtracl
completion dato specified in Form P-.37, Gerieral Provisions Block 1.7
.Completion Date. ^

SS.2023-PCVF-12.COMPE-01 C-2.0 ' C.ohtfact6r InUida .
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7; Notwiihstandihg. Paragraph 17 of the. General Proyisjons Form P-37. changes
linjited to adjusting iamounls within the price lirhitatioh arid adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines thrbugh the
Budget Office, may be made by written agreement of both parties,' Without

' obtaining-approval bf th,e Governor and. Executive Council. If needled afid^
.  justified.

8. Audits

.8,1,The Contractornhust email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhlnhVgov if
any of the follov/Ing conditions exist;

.  Condition A - The Contractpr experided $750,000 pr more.'ln
federalfunds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFP Part
200, during the .rn.ost recently cornpleted,fiscal year,

B.'l .2. Condition B - The Contractor Is subject to audit pUrsua^-b.the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, (llrb, pertaining to charitable

V  organizations receiving support of $1,000.000 or more.

8.1 ;3. Conditiori 0 - The Contractor Is a public compariy and required
by Securify and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations io
subrrilt an annuaTfinancial audit.

' -8.2: . If ■Condition A exists, the Cohlractbt' shall submit an annual Siffgie
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant,(CPA)
■to- dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after" the clqse of the
■Cohtractor's fiscal year, conducted, in accordance with, the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpaft F of the Uriilform
Administrative. Requiremerits, Cost Principles, and- Audit
Requirernehts for Federal awards.

;8.-2r1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Conlrqctor
.shall submit quarterly progress reports .on the, Status of
irhplemenlatlon of the corrective action plan. .

8.3^ ' If.Cdridition 'B or Condition 0 exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit, porforrhed. by an independent. CPA within 12G
days after'the close of'fhe Contractor's fiscalyear-i

0;4i' ■ Any Contractor that receives an amount equal- to or greater than
■$250 "00.0 from the Department during a single fiscal year; regardless
of the fuildlng;,source,"may be required,-at a mlnlmum/to'submlt.annuaj-
■fifi.ancia! audits performed by an independent CPA jf the. Department's
risli.assessrnent deterrnlnation indicates the .Contractor is High-ffSk.

6.5.: In addition to, and not In ,any way in limilatipn of obligations 6f the
A9''een^ent. it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that (lie

.SS^^23:DCVF.'T2.C0MPE'01 ' G-2.0 Conltactor InitiDls
\  . I ' ' . i
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-Cohtractof shall be held liable.for any .state orfederal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department ail payments made under the
Agreem.ent to which exception'has been taken, or which have been
disallo.wed because otsuch an exception.

fj.S$-2023OCVF-12.;CpMPE.pi Ci2,0 Co.ntfaciof l.nlllals.
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TOrAL SIM,000

:  l£
Co^acC' itttais .

.ll/9/>022
'Dcta -



Docusign Envelope ID: 5CAA5EE2-091D-4F1F-94CB-5CEAD9072230

DocuSIgn EnveiopG ID:'56QCAF2D-D126-4E72-AF29-5CC3E94CA5F7

DoeuSgn Em-elapo to. 3iA30i2t4tF648S}-BSCA^1 A7E03UEE

BM.O EtfSM Cvt 8u09II Sroot SS-}82U)CTF.ta^XM?E-0t

New Kampstifro Dopinmornot Kesin and Human sirvicAs

Cnntnctor.Nume: Anwfeo't Vout/i ToonAp# (/ne'ne^^n/Rertx/.bn.A^hwii^, ̂
Dudoet ItoQvostfor DCYF-t.fyTum CorTve(ej70''ondCnjtf4&/n/no Totortio Cmitoct

Budsel Period SF/24 ' .

Indirect Cot! Reio {II apptlcabiQ) aooH

i  .•:0, '{ iiim'S;!•'

t. SdaySWopM $185,000

2. FrtngeBeneats 538.000

3. CDAuuttards $0

4. Equipment
Mdreci CMt<iva ranrw M voutf »«4uimmco«b p«< 7.c^fr m r rv

io}CFfi'»X
5.(a)..!SuppIiei-Educational . .

»o

$1,000

MO) SuppOU-Lab- M

He) Supplioi-Pnermftcv <0

54d) SuvbSo • r<Mlcel sc

$.(0)' SuppOes OCce
0. Travel

51.000

SC

7. Softwire so

0.(a) Oihcf • MadtellAOICoinmtJilcalionr so

a. (b) other - Educaien one Training so

a. (o) other-Oinei (apecVybctov)

SfudoetAdlt^iiea 58.000

Ottcr(0cix ffwH^ SO

OOKf.(pioasv spoeity) SO

Other (pk»e« tpoelf/} to

0. SObredpleni Ccniracts so

TcUl Olroet C«ils $231,000

Total Indiroci Cow 518,000

•TOfAl. $290,000

CprUncAw Inifah '

Da-a 11/9/2022
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CERtiFIGATION REGARDING DRUG.PREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with theprpylsjons' of
Sections 51S1-51Sd of the Dmg-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100^0; Tille V/Subfille p; 41
U,S'C, 701- et .seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's represeniatlve, as identified In -Sectlons
1.1J an,d1.12:6fth0Gehe(ajprovisionsexecutetha,foIlowingCe,rtificatlon: ' ' .

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS "

liS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certifcation'ls required by the .regulaUons impjementing Sections 5151-5-160 of the Drug-Free
'Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title \/,.SiibtilteO: ,41 U.S.C.'701 et seq,). The January 31.
"190 regulations'were arnended and'published .as Part II ofThe May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages,
•2i681'r21591), and r^ul.re certification by grantees (and by inference', sub-grantees and sub-
contfactora), prior lOiaward, that they wijiimalnlain a drug-free workplace.' Sebllon'3017.63.Q(c} of the
fegulalloh'jirovldes thM a grantee (and by-inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) thails a State
may dlect to.make on0:c0ftificatio.n to ihe Departrhent In.each federal.fiscal year In lieu of certjfrcates fb'r
i.each gratit'during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certlfical0;sel out ijfeibw fe a
material representation of fad upon which reliance Is placed NVhen ihe-agency awards ihe grant. False
•.certification or violation of Ihe certification shall'be grounds for suspensioniof payments. siispension.pr'
terminationtofgrqntg, or. government wide euapensicn or debormenl. Contractors using this :form :shpuld
'sondit-io: ^

Gqrrirn.issionB.r

NH D'opadment of Health and Hiiman Services
129.Rleasanl street,
Concord. NH|03301-6505

1. The grsintee certifi.es that it wilt pr.Mli cohtlnuo to provide a drug-free workplace by:-
1,1. Publishing a Gtaternenl.notifying ernpioyees thai the unlas^y) mahufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession Of use of a conirdlled substance Is-prohibiled In the gfant^!s
.workplace and specifying tiie ections that will be taken against ernpioyees.for violalion of such
prohibition;

1/2. .Establishing.an ongoing drugifree awareness program to inform emRloyeos about
,  1.2.1, The drug abuse Inlhovvorkplaco;

1,2.2.. "The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
- T-2-3. AqV available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and ernployee.asslstarice programs;,and

1.2.4.. Thb penalties that.may'-be Imposed upon employees for drtig abuse vidatiohs
occurring In the, wori<place;

1.3. Making it a requjrement that each employee.to be engaged In ihe perforrhahce of the grant be
given; a copy of the statement requ.lredt.y paragraph (a);

•  -1.4. .Notifying the employee In the-stalement required by paragraph (ej that,'a3?a'Conditio.n;pf
.emplbyrnent under the granl, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terrnsof ihestal^ent/and
1.4.2. Nptiry.the-ehiployer In wrilirtg of his or her cdrivlctlbg for a vjolallbrrof a criminal drug

siatulo .occurring In thb workplace no later then' five calendar days dfler such'
cphvlbllon;

1;5. Nolib'ing the agency in writing, withjn ten calendar.doys aflor recelying noiticelu.nder
subparagraph 1.,4.2 from'an empioyee^or otherNvlsc receiving actual notico.'qf such ponViclloh.
Employers of.convlcted erriployees must provide notice. I.ncludmg positipn-tlile. tp every grant
:pfflcer on .whose granl activilyjhe con\^cted employee was wbrklngi unless,the Federal.agpncy

u . ■
.EJthlbil D.- Ccftincalion regarding Dnig Free -Vofidor InHiaUV^

Workplace Rogulfcmehls ' ' '11/9/2022
VOidfiViafitwii , Pagolo'ra Dole
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has designatod 'a cd.olraj.polrit' for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification nurntjaffs) of ea^ affected grant;

■1.6. Taking one pf .the'fojlowln'o actions, within 30,calend8r days of receiving notice under •
siibparagraph,1.4.2^ Afith respect to any employee v/ho .is so corivictec)
i.kl;, T'eWng apprpprlatepersphnel actiori against such^an employee, up to and Including

temriinaUoh, odnsisteril with the requirements of the RehablBtatidn Act of 1973, as •
amended; or • ^

1:6.2-. Reqiiiiin^-such erhployee to participate satistactorlly in a drug abuse-assistance or
•rehabilitailoaprogram'approvedforsuch.purposes by a'Federal. State, or local healih,.
law enforcement-, or olher appropriale agepcy;

1.7. Maklng'agood faith effort to continue to rnaintain a .dnjg-free workplace,through
'implsmeritallbn of paragraphs 1.1,1.2..1.3, 1.4.1,5, and'lB.

Z ' The'grantoo'may Insorl in the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of w6'H<.doneJh
connection with the Bpecific grant. v. ,

• RIace of Rerfdrmaiice (street,address, city, county, state, zip coda) (list each location)

Check .riif lhereare wdrl^places on file, that are not Identified here.

11/9/2022

Dale .

Var^dor Name:Americas youth Teenago whefiiployiiiBnt Jicdu'ctibn N:

OoMiSloBftrt by;

Title: Executive Director

CU'Cirwnorts

^lUh DCcrtirrculipn regardtng Drug Free
Woikplaco Requirerherils

Page zof 2

Vender Initials

-05

■U
11/9/2022

■Oa^e- -
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CERTIFICATION RgGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 3i?ofPublic Law10i-12l. Government wide Guidance for New.Restrictiohs.on Lobbying, and . .
31.U.S.G. 1352, and.further agrees to have the Con^ctbr'.s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 ofthe General Provisions executeihe followirig Ceftiiflcation:

US DEPAFJTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATiON- CONTRACTORS'
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONtRACTORS

Programs (indicate.ep^icable program covered):
Temporary Assi^ance to Nwdy,Families yridorTitIo IV-A
•Child Support Ehfprcement Program under Title fV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under tiile/b<"
•Medicaid .Prbgram under Title,^X .
•C'onimunlty SeiVlces.Block-Greht'under Title VI
•Qhild Gare Development Block Grant under Title IV ' ,

The undersigned oertifies./to the best of his or her knowledge and belie/, that:. .

1. No F^ederal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the unders^ned, to
any person for innuencing br attempting to (nfiuence ah officer or .employee of any agency; a Member
of Congress, an officer .or employee of Corigre'ss, or an em'pipyed of a'Momber of Congress in
(wnne.clioh. vnth the av/aitllng of any Federal,cpntracL conlinuolion, rcnowal, amerktmahtj or . .
modificdtion of any f^oderal.cohtrecl, grant, loan.. OrcodperG^ jagrpemant'fand by specific mehlidn -
sut>-gr0nlee or .sub-contractor), u

2. If any funds oilier than Federal appropriated fiinds have been" paid or will be. paid tp any person for
Influencing or attempting "to influence an o/ficer,or .employee.of any agency, a Mernber of Coogfess,
an officer or employee of Congress, pr'an-empioyee ofia MpmhSLOf Congress in cptinecfipn with this
•Federal cohtraci, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, (and by specific rnention sutj-grantee or'sub-
cont.ractor), the undprsigned shajl-coiTipiete and sui?mit Standard-Form LLl., (Disclosure Form to

- Report Lobbying, .in accordance v/ithlts Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The imderslgned shall require lhaiihe language of this certlficatlon.be included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Inciudihg subcontracts,. sub-;grahls, and contracts under, grants,
loans, 8nd cobper0tiy'e egreemerit8)and that.all subfrecipiehts siiali.certify and.diociose accordingly.

This certification isva materlal represontatfon of fact .upon .vvhidh reliarice was placed'when this transaction
was mad© Qrantered into,. .Submission of this cafilfication.js a prerequisite for making pr..entering,.into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, title 31. U.S. Code, .Any person who fails toTII.e the'reguired
:C.ertirtcation;shalibe sUbjiect^to a civil penally of not less than'Sld.bOO'and not more than.$100,000'for
each'such failure.,

VendofNamVi Afflericas Youth Teenage-unemplo'ynent Reductipn' i

IV9/2q22 I ' .

EXccutive.'Director

Ejihlbi! E - Corllficollon Reear^o Lobbyiivg Vonddr ihlilols.
I  ■ ;-ll/9/2022

CLwattis/nejia F'agoiofi • Dale,
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CERTiFICAtlON F^GARbiNGsDEBARMS'MT. SUSPENSION .
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILfTYMATTERS

The Contractor identifiad 'In Section i;3.of Ihe Generarprovislpps ̂ rees to cqmply with ttie^proVi^ns of
•Executive Office of the Prieside.nl. Executive prd.ef f2i549 and'45 OFF?. Raft'7!6 regarding Deba
Suspension, and Other Respohstollity Matters, and further agrees td have the Cphtractpr's
represenialive, as identified in Sections 1.11 and, 1.12 oMhe General .Provisions execute the following
CertJficatibn: . ~

INSTRUCTIONS PGR CEFlTfFICATION
V. By signing and submiUIng this proposal (contract), (he prospective primary participant Is. providing the

certification-set out'.beloWi . - '

2: The Inodility of a person .to provido.thb certification required below will noTr^e.cessaniy result In denial
of participation in this .covered "iransacllpn. .If necessary, .the.prospeclive participant shall subrhii an
explanation of vvhy it cannot provide the certification. The ceftificalioh Or explanation will Be
considered In. connectipn with the NH Oepartmenl.of Healih-and. Human Services' (DHHS)
.determination wheth.er to enter.jrito this transaction. However, feilure of the, prospective, primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualifir such pGfsori -from iMrtlcipatlon In
this transaction..

3. The certification.in this clause (s a rnaterial representation of.factuppn wKlch .reliance was placed
when-DHHS determined to enter Into this iransactlon. If iTlsrtater determined.llwt .the.prpspedlve
primary participant knowingly fendeied-an erroneous ce'rtification. in'addft}oiyto>thef'remedies
available to. the Federal .Government, DHHS may termlnato this tronsoctlpt) for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written holico to the DHHS hqehcy to
vvhom this'proposal (ojntracl) Is submltled if al any time the prbspectlvd.:pnitiar)' participaht learris
that-Its certificallon 'was erroheous wheri subrriitt'ed or has become erforieous.'by reason of changed
circurnstances. . ' ' * ■ ^

5. The terms 'covered transaction/ 'debarred,"'suspended/ -ineligible/ lower tier covered ,
transaction,"''participant,'' ".person," 'primary covered transaction/ -011001031,^ "proppsal/ ..and
"voluntarily excluded/ as used Ip (his clause, have the rnoanlngs.set.pui in the Definitions and
•Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR .Part76. See the
..attached definitions.

,.6. Tiheprospectiveprimarypa.rt.iclpant agrees by submitting this proposal (contfabl) thal,.6hould'the
proposed covered Ironspotlon .be enterod ihto. It shall not knov/lngly ehtor inlo ianylov/er tier covered
transQCtioh with a person v/ho ls debarred, euspanded, declared:Tneligible,tor voluntarily excluded'
from psrt.icipalion In this covered transaction; unless autliorized by DHHS.s

7; The prospacli.ve primafy participant further.agrees by submitting this proposal' that It' will include the
•  clause tilled 'Certificalibn .Begardlng Debarment, Suspension,Jrieliglbility'and Voluntary Exdusion. -
Lowef Tler-CovpredTransacllqns/ provided.,by DHHS, Without modificalion.-ln all lower lier covere'd'-
transactions and in all scli.cllaiiohs.jor lower tier covered transactions..

•8,: A partlclpa.nt in a covered transaction may rely upon a certlflca.tiof) of a prpspbdiye participant In a
lower tier covered irarisactlpn.lhai'l.tls potdeb'airbd, suspended, ineligi^^ orliivblunlorily excluded
from tlie covered transaction, unlsss il knowi Ihatihe ceKifjcello.n.is drrbnopus. A participant may
decide the rnethdd and frequency by wh'lch-»t doternilries'.tho.'eligibility of lie pnriclpal.s.. .^ch
participaht may, but Is. not required to, check the-.f^lonprocuremoht.Ust (of ex.cluded part.tesj'.

9.. ., Nothing cbnlained In the foregoing shall be construed to r^u|r&.establishment of a syslehii.of records
in-order to fender In good faith.the cerlificatioh fequired by this clause. The knowledge and/

•  r Hj
ExlilbH F ~ Cortifi.ccllpri' RcgartKng Debarmont, Suspsrislof} . •Cpntra.clor Inlitob^ ■

J  And.Olho7_RospbnstelifyMQltort ' 11/9/2022
cu<0},iHsrii5Ti3 "Pa96'l'of2 . Oato
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Infonhation of a pajtlclpant is not requirGd to exceed that'which'Is normally'possessed by a'prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

.10. Except fortransactions authbnzed under paragraph 6 of these instriKt].dn&;if a parhcipant'm a
covered'transaction knowingly erilers Irito a lower tier covered tasaction vvith a person'who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded' from participatioh in this tfan^'clidn; in
.addttibn to other remedies available to the Federal.govemmenl, OHMS may terminate this transaction
-for cause or default; ' \ '

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The pTospeclive prlrhary participant certifiea to the bost of it© knovyledgo and belief, that'ltarid It's

princlpala:.
11.1. arc. not presently d.ebarrod, suspended, proposed for debarmdht, declared inel^fble, or

voluntarily excluded from covered iran.sactioris by any Federal department or agency;.
11.2. havs'i^pt wkhin a. three-year peripd.precedirig this proposal-(co.ntrac4} been connoted of or had

a dvii judgment rendered-agalnst them for commissibh bf'Iraud era criminal offense In
•ppnnec'tipn .v/ilh obtaining; attempting to otjtain, or performing a public (Federal, Slate "or-IOcai)''
^nsaction or a cont'raclunder a public trarisaction; violation of Fcdefal, of State ahtllrusl ,
slatdtes, of cpmmisaidn of embealemenV theft, forgery, bribery, felslflcattohordestructibnof

.  records,, making false statements, or receiving stolen-property; " " '
11.3. are not,presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a,governmental eriijty

(Federal, State or locaO^wlih commission of any of the offenses enumerated iri paragraph .(l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. hava.npt withln'a ihree-year-period preceding this application/propose! hod ono or more publio
transactions'fFoderal, State Of locol) teimlnalcd for cousc or dofault,

1  ■ . '

1,2. VVhero ihe prospecllve prirriary.participant-is unabloTo certify to any of the st^emenls In thls
. certifi'caiion, such prospeclive participant shall attach an explanation to'this proposal (cdhtract).-

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTiONS
13. By slgnlng.and submitting, this lower-tier proposal (contract), the prospective lowertier participarit, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that'll aiid jts principals:
13.1; afe'not.presentjy debarred, suspended, proposed for debarrnenl, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily.-excluded-from participation In this transaction, by. any federal department or agenpy.
13.Z .vyhore the prospective lower tier partidpanl,Is unable to certify to. any of the above, such'

.prospective participant'Shali attach.an explanallon to th|s proposal (coritract).

. l4. The prospective lower tiorpgrtjcipant.furtheragroes by submitting this proposal (contradl) thaf il will
Iridlude ihiS'dduso antitigd 'Cprtill.cation Regarding iDobarme'nL Suspensioh, Ineligibllity; arid
Voluhtdry ExclusionLower Tier Covered Tronsactions,'' without modification, In. all lovver-tier covered
transactions and in all sdiidtations for lov/er tier covered trarisactions.

Contractor Name: Americas Vouch Tepnagc U/ieaipTdytsent Reducti'

——OOMSlQMJS'trV;

a'i/972b22.

:Date Joseph'
•  title:

Executive Director

.  . . .

F- Carll^calipn Regantihg Dobormoni, Suspension Conlmcior infi.ials^
AiidOthe.fRosponsibl!ilyMb!lQ.fS • 11/9/2022

owHKwnor.iJ .P«So2'df2 Dato
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CERTIFldAtiQN OF CQMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDlSeRiMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIGNS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor fderitifia^ in Section I .S of the General Provlsions.agrees by signature of the Cbn'trado.Ks.
represeni4iiv.e as ldeniifjied In Sections 1.1 i.and 1.12.of.the General Provisions, to execute the (allowing'
certification;

ContractorAyill comply, ahd'will require anysubgrantees or subconlractore to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrlmination requirement, which may Include:

- the Omnibus Crime:eohtrdl and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d)Virhich.prohiblts
recipients,pj'federaj .funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices.'or In
the deirvefy of servjces or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The.Acl
requl'res^certaln recipients to product an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile justice\Deliriquency Preyentlon Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by,
reference^ the civil-riohls .obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from.dis.criniinaljhg, either In employment practices, o.r In the delivery of services .or
benefrts, ori the .basjs pTrace, color, religion, national origin, and.sex, The Ac[ includes Equal
.Employmenl Opportunity Plan requirernents;

- the Civil RIghts.Aot of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section.'2d00d, which .prohibite recipients-of federal financial,
assistan^G fforh discfiminatlng .pn. the basis of race, color, of national origin in any program or activity):

- the Rehabilitation Act 6fT 973 (29 U.S.C. Section .794), which prohibits recipients.of FederaJ financial
'"assistaiice from dlsirlmlnailng on the basis of disability.- in regard to employrrioni and the delivery of
services or behefils; In any piogfarh or activity;

- the Amencans v/Ub Dlsabililie,8 Act of. 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12,131 -34], v^hich prohibits
discrimination and ensures dqual opportunity for persons with disabililies in employment, State.ahd- Idbal
governmeril services, public.accommddatiohs, comrne'rcial facilities, and trahsportation;

- the/Education Amendments of 1972 (2p U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discriiriination onThe basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

■ tlis Age Dlscilniinaiion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Secpons 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on, the
basis of aga in prbgrarhs or activities recoiving Federal financial assistanca i,( does not Includo
emplcyrnant discrimination;

- 28 C'iF.R. pL 31 (U,^., pepartment of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grarit Programs): 28 C.F-.R. .p!C-A2
(U.S. DepartmVnt'pf Justice'Reguiations-'Nondlscriml.hation: Equal Empioyriieilt Opportunity; Policies;;
and PrObedures):'Execulive'Ordef No. 13279 (equal.pfoteclioh of Ihe laws for fallh-l)ased"antfcomrnuri'ity.
oi^arilzallohs);- EXeoiiivd Orde/No. 13559, which provide,fundamental'principles'and policy-making. .
criteria for partnerships with faftb-based and neighborhood orgenizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38.(U.S'. Department of jusllc.e.Regulations-Equal Treatmenl.fbr.FalllvBQsed,
prganizetipns): and Whtstletjipwer prote.otions 41 U.S.C. §4'7'l2;and the Natio,nal Defense Authofeatioh-
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Vear 201.3 (Pub. L 1,12-239. enacted January 2.20'13), the Pilot Program foV
'Erihancen!)ent ,o/:,CohtfaCt Eniplbyee Whistleblow^r. Protections, which protects employees'against
'repfisal,forBbii8ih whi^le blpwing.aclivlties liVconnecUoh with federal grants"and contract".

the certificate set oiit-.b'elov/ iS-eTrnaterial representation.of f^c.l upon which reliance Is placed-when the
agency awards the^grsnt. False,certificatidn Or violation of the ceriincaiion shali.be grounds for "
suspensioniofpaymenis, suspension ortermlnatlpn of grpnis, or governm.ent y/ide susperision or "
debamienl. ' \.

X—6a ,

DthibitG I
•  Cootfacror (naioIsS ■ ■
- CbOtf^'on'al CMiplancf i^rih ic;«i!rerrm|ji pen,^ng la Fotfcfal TraatnoiV «! FBilMiaVed »

■  • . • . p, •
omiu . U/9/2022
Kw.ip/7iri.r Pngo t. ofS Pott -
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In the everit a federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
dlscrfmiriation aTlera due process heiaririg dh the-grdunds.of race, color, religion, national Origin,'or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient wiP forward a .copy of the finding to the Office for GIvll Rights, .to
the applicable coniracting.agency or'.division"within the Deparlrnent of Health and Human Services, arid
to the.:Departmanl,"of Health and Human Se'rvicesOfRce of the Ombudsman.

k  * * ' .

Th.e Conlractor iderijified In Section 1,^ of.the jSenoral: Provisions agreesiby signature pflheiContraclor's
representaliv© e's idenUfied in Seclions-l'.ltahd i.12 of the Oeneral Provisions, to execute the follpv^g
ceriificatibn: •

1. By signing arid Submitli.ng this proppsai fcontract) the Cohtracldr agrees to-comply with the provislcrls
Indicated above.

•CohtraclorName: Ame/icas Youth Teenage unemployment fieductfc

U/9/2P22 " I JiiLfL ■ ■ ■ , .
Date ■

Title.; Executive Director

OS

-  ExtVbiVG . .. I
^  . . .. • , Conlraclor Intials^

Cc«ipe»oe»'Shfb^mMnl» lo FrdcitJ Cqjal Troatnonid OrparifilieM '
'eitfyvHuloSbwcrfadBdiosV
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'  CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBAGCOSMOKE.

Public Uaw 103-^7. Part.C - Environmental T6bacco.;Smoke, also knwvn'as the Pro-Childreh Act of 1994'
(Act),Requires th^ smoking not be.perrriilted In anyportipn of 6ny'Jnd6orf0cllitij"bwn'ed or leased or
conlracled for by ah, entity and used routinely, or fegulafly-for the'provislOh of•health, day care, educalibni
or library services to.childran under the .age of 18; if the.services are funded by Federal programs either
dlrectly.or through.State or local goyemments.,by Federal gram.,contrgct.>loan,-or loan guarantee, the
law.does not apply to children's services-provided jn private residences, jaciniles.funded solely by
Medicare or Medioald funds, and portions of ̂clliliea used for inpallent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure

.to comply with the provisions of the law, may resCiilin the imposition of q oivl} monetary penally of up to
S1000 per day and/or the Imposition of ari adrninlstralive oornpliance orderon the responsible, entity. •

The-Conlractof identifiediin Sectiori'l .3 of the General Prpylsiohs agrees, by-s^hature of Ihe Cbntraclor's '
represeriiatiye as Identified In Section 1.11 and iiiof the'General Prbvfeions. to execute the following

•certlflcatloh:: ' ' „

1. By sigplng^and submitdng'this contract,^ the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to cornpfy
'with all applicabla provisions of PubliC'L.aw 103-227fPaft"C, knovm-as the-Pro-Chiidren Act of 1994; "•

■"Contractpr Name: Americas Youth Teenage Unemploynicnc Rcduccipi

by. i ' ' '

1V9/2022 ■
Date loscph

"Title. Executive bifrcctor

-OS

. .

Exhibii li-OortlfiMlJon.RcgbnJIpg -.Coriifaclor
nrisTtronmonlanobacco SmokO Il/9/20?2

cO/qt»t<yi;ioTi3 Poso-i'cfi ' D'oid
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ANaACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

• The Contractor identified Iri-Sectlon 1 >3 of-the'General Provisions oftheAgrdenientaigfees to ■
comply with .the Health ltis;urance Portability arid Accountability Acty Public Law'1.04-^9,1 and
with the Standards for'Privacy and Security .of ■Individually Identifiable Health Information., 45:,
CFR Parts.vieO and .164 applicable to business associates; As defined herein, ^'Business
Assocliale' shall' mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the .Contfactor;that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreertient and "Cohered
Entity" shall mean the State, of New Haihpshi/e, Deparlrhent of Health arid Human Services;

(1) ^ Definitions.
a- "Breach'Tshall have the same meaning' as the term. "Breach" In ■section i64.462 ofTitle' 45,

Gode .qf Federal Regulations. '

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section'160..1'p3pfTitIe 45. Code
ofTedefal Regulations. . ^

c- !CoveredEntjty2 has the meaning given such term" in^sectloh 160.103 of title 4B,
Code of Federal Regulations, '

-d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In45 CFR Section 164.501. '

1'

e-- "Data.AQareoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation'' ih'45 CFR
Section 501.

f. "Health Care Operations- shall have .the same meaning as the term "health care, operations"
In 4.5 CFR;Section 164.501. ■ ■ ^ ,

... . 'f:

■ ' 9- '^HiTECH Act" means the Health informalion Technology for.EcondmIc and ciiriical Health
AcliTitleXill, SubtitleD, ^art 1 &-2of the American Recovery .and,Reinvestment Act of'
2009;

h. "HIPAA' mgans the Health Irisurance Portability and Awourttab»ity"'Adt of i996, Publlc Law.
104-191 and the S'tandard.e.fpr Privacy and Sepiirify ,pf ihdividualiyldentifiabie'HeaJth
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and am.endments thereto.

i; "lridiyidiiar"shall have the same meaning as iheterm "ihclividua'r.in 45 CFR Sectlori, 160:i03
and'sliall includea person who qualifies as-a personal representative In accordance with 45

.  -pFR Se.ction 164.501(g). ■ '

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiablo. Health
Infonmatioh at45 CFR'PaftSi'160 aiid 164. promulgated under-HIPM by tt|;e United States
DepaHmeiit of,Health and Human Services.

k. 'iProtectecl Health Inforrriatioh' shall have the sarn.e rtieaning as lhe terrji "protected Health
"informatipri'-in 45 CFR Section 160.103. Uriiited .to the inforrpation created or recelv^T&y' ■
BusinessAssociate from or on behdlf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Ex.hihill Coritmclof ^
.  , ^ Health Iftsuraiice.PoHbbiiliy Act

Buslnesa Aswcloto Aorcompnl 'ii/g/202?.
Fhgo i' •• Daffi "

'v:
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j. "Required by. Law^ shall have the same meaning as the terrfi "required by law" jh'45 ef-R'
S0dion164.jp3, . ' : "

. . . ... . ■ •

m. '^Secretarv'^.shali mean the-Secrelary of the Department of Health and Hufnah-Services or
his/her designce'.

h. 'Securiiv Rule" shall maari the Security Standards for the Pfoteclioh of Etectrpnic Protected -
Health information af45'CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and am.endmenls thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Infofmatron' means, protected health Infqrmatldn llial is np.t
secured e technology:Staftdard that renders protected health Information unusable,. .
uni^dabie, orindecjpheratile tp unautho.rlzecl individuals and is developed .or endorsed by
a standards developing .organization thaf is accrediled by the American Nalional .Siandafds
institute,.

p., OlITer DeflniliDns -jAIi terms not otherwise, defined herein shall ha've the meaning'
■  established under 46'C.F.R. Parts 160., t82 and 164. as amended from time to time. andlhe'

HITECH" .
'Act

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protecled-^Heallh
Infofrnatlon (PHI) except as reasonably necessary'tp provide the services puUlned .under
Exhibit A of the.Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but npt lirriited to all
its directors, officers, emptpyees-and agents, shall nof use,-disclose, maintain.or trarisniit
PHI in.any manner that v/ould constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. BuisinegsAssoclatemay use of disclose PHI: •
I,.. For the.proper mahagomenl.and administration, pf.'lhe Bysinpss Associatei-

- II. - As .reguired by jaw. pursuant to.the terms setfoflh in paragraph d bdiow; or
lit. for data aggregation purposes for the health caro:operati.Oho'^ of Govefed'

Entity.

c. To the e^rtenl B'uainoss Asspciate.is permitted under the Agreement to..disolose.PHI'to p
third party; Eiusiness Associate must obtain, prior to rnaklng any such disclosure, (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such 'PH) wlil. bd held confidentially and
used' dr further'disclosed d.nly as required .by .law or for the- purpose for which it-V.as
disclosed to the third party; arid'(li) an-.agreernent from, such third party to notify Busirioss
As^ciate. .in accdrSa.nce* with the MIPAA Privacy. Security, and. Breach NotlficMfon
rRules bf.-.ariy breaches of the confidentiaHty^ of the PHI, to the ex.lerit il has obtain^'
knpwi.edge Q.f su'cii breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure.fs reasonably necessary to.
provide services-uhder ExhIbit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In respdnse'to a
request for disclpsuos oh the basis that it }s required by law, without first notifyi.hg
■GovGredEntjtysp-that.,'Coye.r;edB;i'tity has ah opppiiuiiity to pbjecMo.l.he .disclosure and
.4p^seek .appropriate:.relief. If Cpvered-Enlity objects to such disclosure; the.

3W0i4' ExNbiU' Gontmctor'inltlols
Ins'yranqo Portabllily Act

BufthCM A5*6dalb.Agreem<!nt ii/QVPh'?"?Page 2 010 , ■ baio_ll^
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AssocFate shall refrain fromIdisciosirig the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted, all'
remedies; . ( ,

■ e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Busiries.s^ Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional, rest/ictfons over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PH,I p,ursuantlo the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
'shall'be bound.by such additional reslrlctibns and shall not disclose PHI In vidlatioh.pf
such additional festdcUoris'and shall ,abide t)y any additional security safeguards,

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Assoclatei

(  a. The Business Associate shall nbtify the Covered Entii/5' Privacy Officer immediately
afterthe.Buslness Assoclaie becomes, aware of any use -or disclosure of protected
health'info.rrnation not,pr6vided'forby the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected, health information artd/or any security Incidehtthat niay have an irhpact on the
protected health'information of the Covered Entity;

b. The Business Associate shali immediately-perform a risk assessment when it becomes '
aware, ,9f any of thb abQve.sltuaiions. The risk'assessment shail include, but n6t-,be
[irnited to.-

p The nature,and exte.r}! of the protected health.lnformation involypd, lncl,ud,ing the
types of identifiers. and tho likeliho.o.d of re-identification;'

o The unauthofized^person used the protected health information of to-wKom.the
.discjosurd was made;

o Whetherthe protecteci health-Information was actually .acquired or yiewGd
o The extent to which, the risk to tho'protected health informolioh. has been

iniitigatcd.

The Business Asspclalo'shall complete'the risk assessment within 48 hours of Ihe
breach-and'immediately report the.firiding? of the tisk assessment In writing to the
CoVerbd, Entity'.

\c. The Busln.eas Associate shal\compJy with all sections of tlie Privacy,..Security, and
Breach .Notification Rule.

d; Business Associate shall rnake available all'of Its ihternaj policies and procedures, books
ond records'relating fo the uSe and disclosure,of, PHI received from, or created or " •
received.by tbe 'Business Associate on behalfdf Covered Eniity to the Secretary for
purposes ofdeterminlng Covered .Entity's compDartce with HIPAA and the Privacy'and
Security .Ruioi

e. Business Assoclate shaH require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in wriling io adhere to the same
restrictions apd condilipns on,the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the d,uty to,^return orideStrpy'tlie RHI as 'provided under Section 3 <!). The Co.vered. Entity
shell be consldered a direct tlilrd.party beneficiary of the Contradtbrs busiriess-.^pclate•  . .agreements wlth-Cbhlractors inleiHled business associates, who will be receiylS^HI,

3/2014' .ExK,lblH Conlrbclor
.Hc^h imu(in4A^oMabfiily,Acl
'Bu'sirioss Msodole/^eenienl 11/9/2022

Dale
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pursuant to,this A^reerhsnt, vs^lh rlghts.of, enforcement and Iridemnification from such
business associates who shall beiqovern^'.by standard. Paragraph #13. of the standard
cohtracl provisions (P-37) of this Agmemcht fof the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health infprmaiipn.

f. vyithln five(5)^bu6inGss days of recelptbf a written request from Covered Epti^,
• Business Associate shall thake available dunng normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies land procedures relating .to the-use .and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, fOr purposes of enabling 'Covered Entity .to. determine-
Business Assoclafe's co.mpliance with the terms of the.Agreemertt;

■g. \Mlhin ten (10) business days of receiying-a written",request'frofh Covered Enijiy,
.  Business Associate shall pfovide-access io PHj In a Designated Record Set to the

Covered Entity, pr.as directed by Covered.Entiiy, to an individual In order to meet the
.requirements under 45 CFR Section 1.64;524.

h;. ' Within teri (10) business days of receiving a wrIUehrequest'fronr .Cbvered Entlty for an
amendment orPHI or a record about an Individual contained ,In a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall' make such PHI. avallableio' Covered. Entity fpp
ainer^ment and jncorporale -any such amendment to enable Covered-Entity to fuifll) Its' • •

•  obligatjons under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such dlsclpsures-of PHfand information r^ated to
sucli disclosures as would be required for Covered Entlty.io .respond to a request by an
iridiyidual for an accounting of disclosures of PHi In accordance with 45 CFR- Section
16,4.526. , • -

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a .written requestfrom Covered.£ntityfQr a
request-fpr.an accounting of disclosures of PHI,-Business Associate shall make avallatile
!p Covered Entity such Inforrnatlon as Covered Entity may require to fulfili its.obligatioris
lo.provide an accounting of dlsdosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. • in the evehtiahy Individual requests access to,;arnendiTient,pf, oraccdunting of PHi
directly from the Business Associaie.-the.Business.Associate shall within two (2) '
business days:forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the

-  Tesponsibiiily of responding to forwarded requests. Hpwevef, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered-Entity would cause Covered Enilty or the Business
Associate to violate HiPAA and Ihe-Priyacy and Security Rulei^he Business'Associate
■shall instead resporid to the ind.ivlduars request as rBquIred'.by such law and-nolily
Covered Entity of such response as .soon as practicable.

I.-. Wthlri'ten (I.O)'businessdays of termination of "tile Agreem.erit, for any reason, the-
Business Associate shalLretufn or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ai| PHI
received from, or pfea.ted or received by'the Business Associate in.connectlpn'with:the''
Agfeernent, and ihallnot -retaln any copies .or back-up'tapes, of such PHI.. If relurn 'or
destruction Is not feasible, or the dls^silion of the PHf has. been otherwise agfee'd to in

■ tiie Agreement, Business A'ssodate shalj cpntinue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, .to such PH! and further uses and disclosures of such PHI to. theses
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeaslble, for so long as Business

3^014 , ExhlWll Contfactof.lnUalo^—
Hcflllh.lnsurnnw Portattliiy Act'BLfsineia'Assoclate ̂ rodme.nt; ii/9/2022

P<^4oid' Date ;
r, ' ' t '
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5rr;

Associato maihtalns such PHI. If Covered- Entity, in its solo discretion, requires thot lhe
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, tho Buslness.MsocIate shall certify to
Qovered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covored Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any char^ges of limila.tionC^'in'ils
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section.
164^520, to the extent that such change or liml.lalion may affe.ci Business Associate's'
use or.dlscipsure-of PHI. ^ ' «■

bj Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Asspt^ate-ofany changes In, or.revocailori
df permission provided to Covered Eiitlty by ,Individuals whose PHl may be .used or

,disclosed by Busiriess Associate underthls Agreement,'pursuant'to ,45 CFR Section
1,64.500'o,r^45.CFRSectlon1fii4.508. . . , •

Ci Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restficUpns on.the use or
disclosure of PHI.'that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that'Sudh restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. ' '

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to P.aragraph 10 of thestandard terms an,d'conditions (P^S?) of'thiS;
Agreement the Covered Enti^ 'may Immediately terhiinate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
■alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither lermloalion nor cure Is feasible, -Covefed Entity slialj report the
violation to the Secretary., ■ . •

{6) iVliscellaneous "

PBfiriitions:and Regulatory References. All terrns use^I. but not otherwise defined herein,
^  shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Secorify Rule, amended

from time to tirrie. A reference in the Agreenietil. as amended to include tlijs Exhibit 1. to
'a Section in the Pnyacy and Securily'Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. • . • ' '

V  ..

Entity^and Business Associate agree to take'such actioh as Is
hecGssary to amend the Agreoment.Trom.tlme to time as Is necessary fbr-Covered
Entity to comply with the changes jn lhe requirements of'HIPAA. the Privacy phd - '
Security Rule,,8nd a'ppllcabie federal and .stnte law: . • . '

Ci Data Ownsr^ip. The Business Associate acknov;l.edg0s..tii.at it has no o.wriership rights'
wilh respect to the-PHI provided by or created On behalf of Covered Entity.

d, Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in lhejAgfeernent shall:b'a( f,e^ed
to pen'nit Covered Entity to cornplywith HIPAA, the PrJvacy.and Security Rule. |

^2014 Exri'lMU 'Conlraoof
,  Honllh InBur^ncQ .PoOiibaity Act

Buiilnoss Aawdeto Agroeimnl nli •/o
Pagc.fi of 0 'Dale
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e- .Seoreqation; if any .term :or condition of this ExhiWf I or the applicatio.nthereoflo any
pefsdn(s) or circumstance, is held invalid, such invalidity shall, not affect other.terms pf
dpiidiyo.ns^whiclrcari'b^ given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this ehd the

. tenhS'an(:l..cbhaitions of this, ̂ hibit l.are declared severable...

.f. -Survival. .Provisions In this Exhibll I regarding the use and disclosure of PlHi- return pr
deslructlon of PHI, extensions of the.prolections of the Agreenient in secllon (3) i, ̂ the
defense and indemnincalio.h provisions of section (3) e and paragraph 13 of the

.  .standard..tprms arid, conditions (P-37); shaJI survive the termination of the Agreerneht:

IN WITNESS. WHEREOF,-the parties .hereto have duly executed this ExhibTfl,

'D'opart.raent.ol'Heallh and Human Services

Joseph E. Ribsiam, Jr.
■  .1

Signature of Authonzed Representative

Joseph E. Ribsam,

•Name of Authorized Representative
pi-rectbr

Tille of Authofizeil Representative

ll/'9/.2022_

Date

AneHcas Youth Teenage. OnfimpToyijient Reduction Netvvork

Contractor |

SignaSre'offiSthoriz^^
Allison .Josdph , ,

Name of Agthorized R'epreserifatlye

Executive .D) rector-, •
Title of Aulhorized'Representalive

1V9/2022

Date ! ^

3/2014 Exnitsi I

Hoalih InsiirancG PpriaUUiy Act
Bicln&ss Assodalc Agrccmchi

Page66f'6 .

Contioclorirthiab.

.POlO'
u/9/-2022
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Cgt^TIFICA'nCiN REGARDING THE rePERAl. FUNDING AGCQUNVABlLrrv AND TRAN8PARENCV
ACrrFFATA) COWPUANCE " —^ 7"

■ pp Eedersi Rundi^ Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime-awardees of Individual
Federa qra^nts equal to or greaterthari $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010 to reoort on
??? ©xecdtlve compensatibn.and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more if the

^  grant-modincations result In-a"total aWard equal to or over$26,000. tne'award Is sut^ect to ttte FFATA. reporting requiramerits. as of the dale of the-award •
In-acCTrd^ce^ 2 Cf^ Part 170.(Repprtlng'Subaward'and Executive'CompensaUonlnformation). the
Dopartmenl of Health and Human Services (DHHS), rnust report the following Inforfnaljon foranv
oubai^rd orcdnUactaward subject,to the'FFATA reporting requlrerrients"
t. Narn© of entity !
2; Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAlCScode^fbrconlracts /CFDAprogram number for grarits
5. Program "source"
6. Award title descrlptivo d? the purpose of the fundlng.actlon
7. Location,of theentlty .. .
8. Rrindple place orpdrtbiTnance " • ^ ' . .
0. Unique Identifief of the entity (UEI# . ' ' ^ ,
lD.;TotiN compensation and'names Of the (dp five executives If: ' .

10.1. P^qre'thari 80% of annual gross revenues'.areiffbnfi the Federal government and those
•revenues are greater than 525M annually and' • - •

10.2, CompensaUon.lriformalion.iB not already available through reporting to the SEC.

prime grant reclplqnte muatcubrnlt FFATA. requlrod data by the end of the month 'plus 30 days in which
thoawarddravyanlamer^piemisrna.dG.- •
The Conb^lorld'enlifiad jn .Sechph 13 of the General Provlslons agrees to comply"wlth'the prbvlsionB of
The Federal Funding Accountabillty^and Transparency AcL.Public Law 10^282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 GFR Part 170 (Reporty)0 Subawafd and Executive Compensation Ihformatlonj. and further agrees' •
to have the Contractorfs repreMhtatlye, asidentlfled In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the" General Pfovlsibns
execute thefdllowlngCertlficalion: ^
T^ below named Coritracloc.agreBs to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and lo comply with all appllcableprovlslons of the Federal
Financial Accountability .end Tran^arencyAcL ^

Conlraclor Name: Americas Youxh jeenage uneraplpynieht Kcductic'

W^/2022. ' . ■ '
Date

THIp* • .. .
'  ExecutnvQ Director

.Exhibit J.:-?.Cc'rWlcfiUQn RegardlnB the FeUoral FuniUno Conlrador fnillah^ ' ̂
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FORM A

As the Cantraclor Identified In Section 1.3 bfihe. General Provisions.,! certify .that the responses .to the
below listed questions ere'tnje and accurate. - '

1.

.2.

The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity Is;*
.KVElLL638'4n8

In your business or organlzatlori's preceding.compleled fiscal year, did your.business or organlzatlo.n-.
receive (1) 80. percent.or more of your annual gross rBvenue In LI:S.' federal contracts, subcontracts;

loans, grwts, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreemontsi ond (2) $25,000,'0b0'or:more in annual

gross.revenues from.U.S; federal contrads, subobntracts, loans, grants, siibgrants; and/or

cooperative agreemenfe?'

'  ̂ NO YES

If-the answer tpiK above. IsHOi'Slop here.

iftheanswerto#2aboveis.YES. please answer the following: ■

3. does the public have access to information,about the cpmpensation of the executives In your '

business ororganlzation through periodic reports.filed .under seclion 13(a) or 16(d)vOf the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78c>(d)) orsectjon'eiCMolthe Internal Revenue Code.o| .
■' ■■'19:86? ■

_.N0' YES

If the ahswer to #3 above Is YES. .^stop.he^
lf'the'answerto#3abovo Is NO.pleasefansvverthe fpllowing:

4. the names .ahd'compensatlon of the'five.most highly comperisated. pTficws in your business or
organlzatiori are aMollows:

Name:".

Name;.

Nam©::.

Name:;,

i. Name;

Amount:

Anio.ynt:.:.

' Amount:'_

Amount _

Amount; _

CU^<Sft107t3

Exhibit J - Cctiiflcfition RoOBTdlno tha Fedcr^ Fundinp
Accountability And Trpnsp.aroncy Act (FFAT/V) Comfrflahcb ,

Page 2.012

Contractor Inliiab
Hi.

Palo.
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A. Definitions •

the following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of cchtrol,. comjirpmise. unauthoriz^ disclosyre.
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any.similar term referrrng to
situations 'where' persons other than au^orized users and for '.an other than
authorized purpose have access or pot^tial access to perspnally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electrpnib. VWth regard' to Protected Hearth
rnformation,' Breach" shall have the same "meaning as the term "Breach" jni section

'  164:402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regiilation.s.

2. "Computer Security Incident" 'shall haye that same meaning. "Cpmputer Security
IncideriF-in section two (2) of NjST Publication 800-6'i, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National,-Institute of Standards arid Technology, U.S. pepartriient
of Commerce. .

3. "Cdnridenfial Information" or "Confidential Data'' means all .confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other- such as all nvedical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personai information including without .limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health, lofdrfnation and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Inforrriatipn also includes any-and alj information owned or managed by
th.G .State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of th'o Departm'erit of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in- Ihe course of performiing cdrilracted
services - of which cdlleclion, disclbsure, prdtectlon, and dispbsitidri is ..governed by
state-.or federal law or regulation. This Infofmatipn includes, but Is riot Ijmrted to
Prpterted. Hearth Information (PHI), Personal Ipforrnation (Rl), Pers.orial Financial
Irrformalipn (PFl), FGderaJ Tax Information (Fti). Social Security .Numbers (SSN).
.Payment Card-.lndust^ (PCI),, and or other sensitive and corifidentiai Information.

4. "End Usef means any person or entity (ag., coritractor, cprilractor's employee, -
business associate, subcontractor, other 'dpymstream .user, etc.) that- receives
DHHS data or deriyatlye data In,accordance .svith the term.s of'thls Contract'..

5. "HIpM" means the Health-Insurance Portability and-Acco'uritability.Actof 1'§96-dnd the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

'6. "Incident" means an act that potentially vldl.ates an explicit or Ifhplied security policy,'
which includes attempts (either failed or 6uccess.ful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruptlor) or deri.lal of serylce. 'the Unauthorizect use of:
a'system for the processing or storage of-data;- end changes ,to system "bardware^
firmware,'6r software characteristics v/ithout the owner's .knovriedge, inatrticlfon, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement', .loss
or .misplaoemeht of hardcopy documents, .and misrouling ":0f physical .or electronic-

i—1.05

. Iw.
ya,L05lUpd«e 10/090.11 "ExnibnK CdhinKiorlnaiaU'^'-—--

OHHS Inloimdilon
Security-Rcquiremenls 11/9/2022
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mall, all -of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
accfess.. use. disclosure,'modification or destaiclion;

7. ""Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a. network that is
:  not designated by the State of New Hairipshireis Departnrient of Infohmation ■

Technology or delegate as a protected netv/ork (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the .State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network add not adequately secure for the transmission ;Qf,unehciypto.d PI, PPI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data,

8. "Personal Information' (or "PP) means InformaOon,which can be-used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, persona!
,Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 35^C:19, biomeitric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined v^rth other pefeonal or identifyirlg information. whiplifs linked

'or.lihkdbie toa specific Individual, such as date and place of" birth, mother'is maiden
name, ©to.

;9. "Privacy Rule^Shali mean the Standards for Prlvaoy of IndlVidualiy Idehtlfiable Health
Iriforrhation at 45 C-.F.R- Parts 160 and 134, prorriulgatcd under HIPAA by the United
Statds Department of Health and Human Services, '

I,0, "Protected Health Information" (or ''PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definllibn of'Protected Health Information' iri.the HIPAA. Privacy Rule at 45C.F.R, §
160:i()'3. '

II. 'Sec'uflty Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electrohjc
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R, Part, 164, Subpart C, and :emehdments
(hereto. . '

12. "Unsecured Prptected Mealth Information" mean.s Protected Health Information that is
' not secured by a .technology standard that reriders protect^ .HealUi rnforrnatlpn

unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals .arid Is
devel6pe,d or,enciors^ by a, standards developirig brganfralfpn that "is accredited by

' theAm'erican National Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBILltlES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Busiridss Use and Disclosure of OonfldentiaHnfornvation.

1. The Contractor must ript use, disclose, maintain or -lransmit Corifidenilal: Ip/ormation
except" as reasonably necessary as outlined under this- Contract, Further, diontractWr

,  ihCludi.hg butmoi lirhited to all'its directors, offt.cers,- employees and agents, ;rnusl nof
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In, any manner that would constitute a violation
'Of the Privacy .and Security Rule.

. 2. The "C.oh.traclor must not disclo.se any Confidential InforrTi'ation In response to. a

vs. Lajl.U^Rlo'lO/oanS Exhibit K
OI IHS Inrormdiion

'Setiirity Requirements
. Page Z of.0
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request-for cliBclosure oh"'the basis thafit is required by law. Iir response to a
subpoena, .etc., without-first notifyjrig DHHS so that .DHHS has an opporturiify lo
consenhor object to the disclosure. -

3; If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additipnal,
.Cestfi^ions over arid above those uses or disclosures of security safeguards of PHI"
pursuant to the Privacy .and Security .Rule, the "Contractor mu^t be bound by such
addition^) restrictions apd'must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
^restrictiorisarKl.musfabidebyahyaddltionalsecuritysafeguards. -

•4. the Gbrrtractcr agrees thai DHHS Data or derivative there from discjpsed'.tp an End
•User niustbnly 'be 'usedpLirsuant tc the terms of this -Cor\tract.' :

,  5. the Cohlradlpragrees pHHS Data, obtained under this Coritract may not be used fpr
•  •a'ny.olherpurposes thM'are notindicaled ln this Contract.

6? the Contractor-agrees to grant Access to.:the data.to the authorized representatives
• of DH.HS?for Ihe.purpose .bf inspecting to conftrm compliance with the terms of this;
-Contract-. ' .

II. MEtHODS OF SECURE TRANSIVIISSION OF DATA

1. AppjicQtlon Encryptiori. If End User is transmitting DHHS data cbhlairiing
.Confidential .Data between .applications, the Contractor attests the appiications" have
been evaluated by- ah expert knowledgeable In cyber .security and that .said
application's erwryplion capabilities ensure secure transmission via. the*intornel. '

2. Gpmputer Disks and Portable, Storage Devices.. End User may not use "computer disks
pr-portabie.storage devlcesi^such as a thumb drive, as a method of.transmitting DHHS
data. ' • •

3. Encrypted. Email. End' User may only empioy email -to transmit" Confidential Data If
email Is: e'ncrvpted and, being sent to arid being received by email addresses of
pefsons.aulhbrized to receive such Information,

4. Encrypted Web'.Site. If .End User Is employing the Web to transmit. Confidential
Data, the-secure, socket .layers- (SSL) must be used and, .the. web site must be
secure. :S5L encrypts d.atalransfrijUed via a Web site.

5. Fil.e Hostirig.JServices, also known as .File Sharing Sites". End User" may hot-use file;
hosting -services; such 'as brppbox or Google Cloud Storag'e, to frahsriii.t
Confidential Data.

6; Ground .Mai) S.eivice. End User may only transmit .Cprifideotial Data via cpH/ffed'grbLind
mail within'the continental U.S. and when sent to a named lndividual. "

^  7. laptops arid pDA. .If End' User is. employing- portable., devices -to transmit
Cbrifidential .Daia' said devlces must be encrypted and password-protected.

,6. ppen-VYir.g!ess'Networks. Ejid User may not trar?smlt Conndential.paia yia'an open

•vs. Laat update 10/09/18 K ConVactoMKiiiala^^—^
phlHS InforrnoUon

Security R«quiremenls • 11/9/2022
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wireless network. End User must ̂erripio]? ;a. virtual private, network (Vf^N) .when
•fernotely trarismitting vla an open-wireless network.

9. Remote User Cbmmunlcatiori. It End Usef Is employtrig remote comrnunlcatiqn to
access or transnriit/Confldehtlal Data, a virtual, private ne.ty/ork (VPN) rnust be
installed on the End User's-rripbne device{s) or laptop frorti which informatlbn will be

. transmitted .Of accessed.

10. SSH File Transfen Protocol (SFTP), also kno.v/n as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing -ah'SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End." User will
structure the Foicter ,ahd .access; privileges, to prevent IpaRpropriate disclosure of
Information. SFJP folders and sut>^folders used for transrfiitting Confldenila! Data will,
be .'coded for 24-liour aulordeletlon cycle (I.e. ConfidentlarDatawlll be-deleled every 24
hours). ' ^ ^ -

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is.transmitting Confidehtlal Data via wireless dovices,. all
data must be encrypled'to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

ill. RETENTiON AND OiSP.OSITiON OF identifiable RECORDS

The Contractor will bhlyret'airi Ihsdata and. any derivaliye of the data for the .dUration.bf this
Contract., After such tifTt_0, the Gohlraclpr v/ill have 30, .days to destroy the data and eny- *
denyative In whatever fprm it may Q)dst, unless, btherwis,© rbqolrod -by. law or permitted.
under Ihls.Goniract. To iHis^end, the parties must:

A. Retention ^ -

1. The Conlracfor pgrees' it-will, not" store,'transfer or process data collected Ih
■connection with the services' rendered under-.this Contract outside of the United
..States. This physical location requirfemant shall also.apply in the Implemenfatipn .of
cloud .corriputirig,. cloud seryic© or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data! and DisastefRecdvSjylpcatlp^

2. The Contractor agrees to ehsije .proper security monitoring capabilities are In
pla^ to detect potential.^security eyants that can, impact St^e of NH -systems
.and/or Departrnenl confidential Informatioh for cpntrador provided systems.

3. Ths-Cbntractbr agrees lo\ provide security aware.ness- and education for* Its End
^  Users in suppbrt-of.protecUng Department confidenliai Information.
4. The .Gontf'actor agrees .to .retain all electrbnic-.andhard copies of Confidential Data

ihra.secure locatib'n and identified in sectlori IV. KZ
"  " H. ' * .

5. Tho C.orilractor agrees Gbnfld§nt]al Data stored in -a Cloud rn'ust be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH" compliant solulioh and comply with all applicable slatuies and
regulations regarding the privacy'.and 'secunty. All servers and devices miisl have
currenlly-aijppofled, qnd 'liardehed operating sy.stern.s, the latest .'antfrvlral, enll-
.hacker, anti-spam; anti-spywace, and anli-malware utilities. The envlronrherit, ;as a

p?

vs. updalo 1I)/QW18 ■ Edjfch K. Coolraclor IniOals^'
KIHS InformaUan
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■whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and flrewall prbtectioh.
6. the. Contractor agrees to and ensures Its corrtplete ^cooperation .with, the State's

Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
•• Infrastructure.

B. Disposilion

1. If the Contractor will rnalhtaln any Confidenllai IrifprThatipn on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will .maintain a documented prpcoss for
securely disposing otf such data upon request or contract termination; and will

• obtain written certification -for any State df New' Hampshire data destroybd. by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, andibr disaster

.  recovery operations. When ho longer iri use, electronic media containing'State of
New Hampshire data ehaij be rendered unrecoverable via a secure vnpe program
in accordance y/ith; industi7-^ccepted'"Bt0ndards -for secure deletion and media

' sanHizalion, ' or otherv/lse physically 'destroying the media (for example,,
{degaussing) as' described Iri NIST Special. PubljCQtion "800-88, Rev" ti .Guldelinba
"for" Media Sani.tizatipn,. •Natloriai 'Instituie of Standards and Technbldgy, ,U., S.-
Depa'rlrnpnt of Com'merce.-The.Conlractor wiil dqcumenl and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provrdeyyrilten certiflcatipn .tp the Department.

:  upon request. The. written certification will incjude all defails :necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed -arid validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and. professional standards for retention requirements will be joinljy'
evaluated by the State arid Cpnlractpr prior tp destfucllori. ' '
Unless otherwise specified, within .thirty (30) days.'of the termination of this

■ Contract, Cbntfaqtor agrees .to destroy ajl hard cppies of ponfidential -Data using a
secure method sucfi as shredding.

3. Unless olhehvlse specified, within, thirty (30) ;days .of the termiriatiori^ of this.
Contract, 'Contractor-agrees-to^ completely-destroy all eiectrorile Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV.-PROCEDURES FOR SECURiTY "
•  ' Z

.A: Contractor agree's to safeguard the DH.HS Data received yjlder'thls Cbritrgcl; ^and any
derivative data or files, as.follow's:

1. The Contractor will maintain, proper security 'controls; 'to protect Department
-  ' . ^ confidential Infprmaliori cojlectedj processed, managed,, and/or .stored jn the delivery"

of conlfacted services'. ' •

2. The Contractor will maintain policies arid pro.cedures to protect. Deparlmenf
conflderitlal Information throughout the Infbrmatiori.ilfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, iransformatiPn, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
friedia used to store the data (fe., tape, disk? paper, etc.).

.05
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systerfis that collect, transmit, or store Departmentibonfidehtial-ihfdrfnatfon
where appljpable. , ' ' • . ■

^  . a: The Coritractor'will ensure proper security mohitonhg capabilities are in place, to
detect potential security events that can Impact. State of KIH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems;^

5. The Contractor" Will provide regular security, awareness and education, for its End
Users ifi support' of protecting Oepartmenl confidential Infomiation.

■6. If the Contractor will be sub-contractirig, any bore functions of. the erisaflemeht
kippprtihg the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the CdnitractpT Vi^II mainiglh 'a
prograrp of ah. internal process or^ processes-.'ihat ,-defihes specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that, al a; rrilnlmum
rhatch those for the Contractor, including breach notification fequirenients..' •

T. the Contractor will work, with the Department to sign,.and comply with all applicable
State of -New Hampshire and Dfepartmenf.system access arid .authofi^atipn poilci^s

■  > and prqcedures, systems access forrtis, a.nd. computer use. agreements as part of
•  obtaining and maintaining access to any Department sys'tem.Jsj/Agreements will be

completed and sigried by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contradtor's prior to
'systeiVi access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Buslrtisss As'spcl^le pureuarit to 45
GFR 180.103, .the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business .Associate Agreemeri!
(BAA) with the Departrnent and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. ' . . .

9. TPe Contractor will wc^k .with the ■ Department at its request to complete q- System
Management Survey. The puipose of the survey is to enable .the Oepafffneni and

. Contractor'fo-mohitor for any changes In, risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur Qvar the lif.e of the. Cpnlraclor engagement. The. survey-wilj be completed
annual!/; pr an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion Avith .agreem.ent. hy

.  .the Confractor, or the Department may request the survey be compieted when the
scope of the.engagement between the Department andrth© Contfaclor chafi^fes.

10. The Contractor will not store,; knowingly"or unknowngly, any State df.New Hampshire
or pepartrriehl data offshore or Outside the boundaries of the Urilled States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from rthe information Security Offlcb
leadership member v/ithin the Department.

11.. Data Security Breach Liability, .in the event of any security breach Coritracior shall
make efforts-.to investigate'the causes of the breach, promptly take m'easures to
prevent hjture breach and minirhize any darhage or loss' resulting from;;the breach.
The State shall recover frd'nrthe Coiptract^ all costs of response arid recovery from

■  a ...
.V6,,Ui! vlxlalo iWtfe/lB . EjftlttiiK Contfaclof Ihliialii'^^
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the. breaCh.'Including-'but not .limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs-and.
costs associated with' website and telephone call center services necessary due (p
the^breach.;

12.. Contractor must, comply with all applicable, statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy .and security of •Confidential Information, and nriusl ln all other respects,
•maintain theprivacy and securlly'.of PI a.nd' PHI at a level and scope-that is-riot less
than the level .arid' scope of requirements applicable, to federal .agencies, Including,
but not .limited to, jSrpvlslons of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 55.2,a), DHHS
P;rivacy Act ;Regulatiphs *(45 ti.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules. 1(45
'Q.F.R'. . Parts 1.60 and 164) that govern protections for individually .identifiable health
information and'as applicable under State law. •

13; Contfaclor agrees td establish and maintain appropriate administrative, tech'nidai, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of .the Gohfideritial Data -and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. Tiie safeguards must provide a.leyeiind
scope ;pf security that is ..not less than the level .and scope of security requirements
establish^ by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information'iTephnology.
Refer'to Vendor Rewurcds/procurement at https://v/ww.nh.gov/doit/.veriddr/{ridQx.htm
for ttib 'DGparlmGrit of. inrormatiori Techrlolqgy policies, guidelines, stahdardP, and
•pmcuYernbnt information relating" to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees" to maintain a documented breach riotKicption a.nd incident
respphse .process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's'Secuflty Officer of any security breach imm^iately, at-the. omaii addrossos
provided In Section Vi. This includes a confidential irrformatioh breach, ■.c'omputer
security incideht, or suspected" broach which affects or iricludes any State of "New
Ham"p"shiro" syst'crns'thal connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

1.5, Cpnira'ctor must restrict ;access to the 'Co"nfiderilial Data obtained '.under this
.Contract, io only those authorized End Users who need such DHHIS pala, to
perform their pffi.cl.al. duties in connection with purposes Identified )n this Contract.

16.. The C.orifmctbr must ensure that all End Users:
a. '^comply with such safeguards as, referenced In Section" IV A. above,-

:implsm.ented to, protect Confid.entlal Infbrniatioh that Is furnished by DHHS
..uhdef tfiis Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. .Bgffeguard this information at all times..
c. ensure that laptops and>other electronic devices/media cbntpin.ing PMIi Pl, or

PR are encrypted and passv/ord-protected. " .
d. 'send bmails cbritainirig Confidential Information, only if. encrypted and being

sent to and ;.l)©hg received., by email addresses of persons.- .au'thprizod to
'.recaiya suchiinforrrialion.

U
vs: i.asupciato 1CVO0/.1O ExWftli K co.iirocloflriitKj,l$
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1

■0. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.
f. Confidential. Information' received under this Contract and indtvldually

.identifiable' data derived .from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically -and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty, hours as well as non^duty hours (e.g., door locks, card Keys,
biometrlc Identifiers, etc.),

g. only- auth'piized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally ideiitifiable information", and in all cases,
such data must-'be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest; or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Cohfidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined' by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

\. understand that, their user credentials (user name and'password) must not be
'shared with anyone"; End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This .applies to .credentials used to access the site directly or ihdirBctly through
a third party application:

Cbntractdr is responsible for oversight and corhpllance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Corilracl, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein;. HIPAA,

' ' and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Sloe's Privacy Officer and Security .Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses .-provided in
Section VI.

the Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches ihVolvIng PHI In
accordance with the agency's docupisnted Incident Handling arid Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addjtion to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with a!) applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures-must also address how the Contractor v/i!l:
1, Identify Incidents: .

2. Determine If personally iderilifiab.le Infoimalion is'involved in Incidents;
3;" Report slispected br confirmed Incidents as required In this. Exhibit or P-37;
4. . Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidenls

■  and determine risk-based responses to lncidents;.arid

-M

vs. Last updaJe 10/00/18 Exhibit K Conlfacto? Ihlllata^^
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, ideritify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear <x)sts associated with the Breach notice as v/ell as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed -and reported as
.appiical)le. in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

k PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer

DHHSPrivacyOfflcer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSe'curItyOffice@dhhs.nh,.gbv-

V6. LastypdaU) loraoris Exhibit K
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